
  
  
  
  

  
 

 

 

K M T P O  i s  a  r e g i o n a l  t r a n s p o r t a t i o n  p l a n n i n g  a g e n c y  r e p r e s e n t i n g  a l l  o r  p o r t i o n s  o f :  
K i n g s p o r t ,  S u l l i v a n  C o u n t y ,  H a w k i n s  C o u n t y ,  G r e e n e  C o u n t y ,  W a s h i n g t o n  C o u n t y ,  S c o t t  C o u n t y ,  

C h u r c h  H i l l ,  M o u n t  C a r m e l ,  G a t e  C i t y ,  W e b e r  C i t y  
 

Kingsport MTPO 
415 Broad Street 

Kingsport, TN 37660 
MTPO@KingsportTN.gov 

423.224.2677 

Bill Albright 
Transportation Planning Manager 
 
Lesley Phillips 
Transportation Planner 

   
  
  

    M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

To: Kingsport MTPO Executive Board 

CC: Subscribed Interested Parties 

From:   Lesley Phillips, Transportation Planner 

Date: June 06, 2022 

Subject: MTPO Executive Board Called Meeting 

  
Please see the attached agenda for a called meeting of the Kingsport MTPO Executive Board, to 
be held Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 1:30 PM (EDT), in the Kingsport City Hall Board Room 
(415 Broad Street, Kingsport, Tennessee). 
 
There are three action items: 
 

 Minutes from May 12, 2022 Meeting 

 TIP Amendment #9 

 TIP Amendment #10 
 
 

In addition to the agenda items listed above, time will be allotted for public comments and general 
information items. 
 
The meeting will be in-person and members of the public are welcome to attend. We also plan to 
offer live public access to the meeting through a Zoom webinar. Members of the public who are 
interested in attending remotely should send an email to MTPO@KingsportTN.gov to request the 
log in information for the meeting. In order to allow time to respond, your request must be received 
by 12:00 pm on June 15, 2022.  
 
Executive Board members who are unable to attend may designate a proxy in writing to represent 
you. A sample proxy letter is attached.   
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: Because this is a called meeting and updates were just received at the May 
meeting, there is not an agenda item for Federal/State Partner Updates and Project Updates. 

mailto:MTPO@KingsportTN.gov
mailto:MTPO@KingsportTN.gov


AGENDA 
 

Kingsport MTPO Executive Board Called Meeting 
June 16, 2022 at 1:30 PM 

Kingsport City Hall – Board Room 
415 Broad Street, Kingsport, TN 37660 

 
 

 
 
Call to Order – Paul Montgomery, Chairman 
 
 
1. General Information and Attendance Roll Call 
 
Presenter: Lesley Phillips 

 
 

2. Public Comment on Agenda Items 
        

Those wishing to make a comment pertaining to any of the agenda items may do so at this 
time with a five-minute time limitation. Comments not pertaining to a specific agenda item 
will be heard at the end of the meeting. 

 
   

3. Approval of Minutes from May 12, 2022 Meeting (Vote Required) 
 
Presenter: Paul Montgomery 
 
 
4. TIP Amendment #9 (Vote Required) 
 
Presenter: Lesley Phillips 

 
Item Summary: The Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) has requested the 
Kingsport MTPO amend the current TIP to add funds to FY22 for the following project 
groupings: Maintenance: Traffic and Safety Grouping and Maintenance: Preventive 
Maintenance for Bridges. Amendments to the TIP require Executive Board action.  
 

 Recommendation: Approve the resolution as presented. 
 

 
5. TIP Amendment #10 (Vote Required) 

  
 Presenter: Lesley Phillips 
 
 Item Summary: The City of Kingsport has requested the Kingsport MTPO amend the 

current TIP to add funds to FY22 for construction of the Main Street project. Amendments 
to the TIP require Executive Board action.  



  
 Recommendation: Approve the resolution as presented. 
 
 

6. Kingsport MTPO Title VI Plan 
 
 Presenter: Lesley Phillips 
 

Item Summary: Title VI, 42 USC 2000d et seq. was enacted as part of the landmark Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. It prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin 
in programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance. 
  
More specifically, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states: “No person in the United 
States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation 
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 
receiving Federal financial assistance.” (42 U.S. Code 2000d) 
 
Title VI applies to all organizations that receive federal funds. The Kingsport Metropolitan 
Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) receives federal funds from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation (DOT), distributed through TDOT, VDOT, and DRPT. 
Therefore, the Kingsport MTPO is required to develop policies, programs, and practices 
that ensure transportation planning activities are performed in a manner that is 
nondiscriminatory as required under Title VI.  
 
The MTPO’s Title VI, Environmental Justice, and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) policies 
and procedures are documented in our Title VI Plan which was recently updated. The 
updated plan was approved by VDOT and TDOT and shared with FHWA. While the 
Executive Board does not have to take formal action to adopt the Title VI Plan, it is still an 
important document and the updated plan is being presented for informational purposes.  
 
 
7. Public Comments  
 
Members of the public may address the Executive Board with issues related to the region’s 
transportation system. There is a five-minute time limitation per individual and/or topic. 

 
 

8. Meeting Adjournment   



 
 

 

Sample Proxy Letter 
 

 
 
 
     
Date 
 
 
 
I,       , of       ,  
                     (Print Name)     (Agency) 
 
Hereby designate         to vote as my proxy 

(Name of Proxy) 
 

during the      meeting of the Kingsport MTPO Executive Board. 
(Meeting Date) 

 
 
 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
 
 
 
 
 



KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 

Meeting Minutes for May 12, 2022 Meeting 
In-Person Meeting with Optional Live Public Access via Zoom Webinar 

Members Present: 

Jimmy Adkins, Blake Ailor, Chase Milner, Paul Montgomery, Ronda Sawyer, Ambre Torbett 

Absent: 

Hawkins County/Church Hill/Mount Carmel Representative 

Staff Present: 

Bill Albright, Susan Doran, Lesley Phillips, Candace Sherer, Michael Thompson 

In Person Attendees: 

Jason Carder – Mattern & Craig 

Michelle Christian – TDOT 

Calvin Clifton – Mattern & Craig 

Michael Dick - TDOT 

Mitchell Elliott – MEOC/MET 

Jason Farmer – TDOT 

Eric Kerney – Sullivan County Highway Department 

Jon McCurry – NET Trans 

Ken Taggart - Citizen 

Wendy Terrazas – Kpt. Aquatic Center 

Online Attendees: 

Paul Beebe – Thompson Engineering 

Tiffany Dubinsky – VA DRPT 

Troy Ebbert – TDOT 

Taylor Lee – TDOT 

Jalexus Lemon – TDOT 

Jennifer Marshall - TDOT 

Sean Santalla – FHWA - TN 

Recorder: Susan Doran 

I. Call to Order: Chairman Paul Montgomery called the meeting to order.

II. General Information/Attendance Roll Call:

The meeting was held in-person with optional live public access available via Zoom Webinar.

A video/audio recording of the meeting is published online at

https://www.kingsporttn.gov/city-services/kmtpo/meetings-notices/agenda-minutes/

Attendance and votes were taken by roll call.

III. Public Comment: Paul Montgomery invited members of the public to address comments

related to agenda items. No comments.

Agenda Item #3: Approval of Minutes from May 12, 2022 Meeting

https://www.kingsporttn.gov/city-services/kmtpo/meetings-notices/agenda-minutes/
PhillipsL
Highlight



May 12, 2022 Minutes  Page 2 

 

IV. Approval of Minutes: The minutes of the February 3, 2022 meeting were reviewed. No 

corrections and/or additions were suggested. A motion was made by Jimmy Adkins to 

approve the minutes and was seconded by Ambre Torbett. Passed in a roll call vote: 

Adkins, Ailor, Milner, Montgomery, Sawyer and Torbett voting “Aye”.  
 

V. New Business:   

  

A. FY22-23 Unified Planning Work Program Amendment #1. Presented by Bill Albright. 

One of the primary products MTPO Staff is required to develop is the Unified Planning 

Work Program (UPWP). The “Work Program” is a comprehensive description of the 

various goals and/or tasks that will be carried out by MTPO staff and associate 

members over the next one to two years. It also includes a budget that incorporates 

allocations from various federal agencies, with matching funds from TDOT, VDOT, 

LENOWISCO PDC, and the City of Kingsport (the cognizant agency for the MTPO). 

The document is typically organized in a manner where these tasks or planning 

functions are detailed in accordance with federal, state, and local standards. The tasks 

include Program Administration; Travel Data Collection, Maintenance, and Analysis; 

Short Range Planning; Long Range Planning; Multimodal Planning (bike, pedestrian, 

transit); and Special Studies. The current UPWP covers two fiscal years and is 

identified as the FY22-23 UPWP. For Tennessee/TDOT the UPWP is recognized over 

a two year period. Virginia/VDOT only recognizes one year at a time so the Virginia 

portion of the UPWP must be approved annually by the Executive Board.  Amendment 

#1 to the FY22-23 UPWP includes adjustments to the Tennessee/TDOT FY23 budget, 

addition of FHWA’s Planning Emphasis Areas (PEAs), and adoption of the FY23 

Virginia component. A motion was made by Jimmy Adkins to approve FY22-23 Unified 

Planning Work Program Amendment #1 and was seconded by Ronda Sawyer. Passed 

in a roll call vote:  Adkins, Ailor, Milner, Montgomery, Sawyer and Torbett voting “Aye”. 

 

B. Scott County VA SMART SCALE Projects – Resolution of Support. Presented by Lesley 

Phillips. SMART SCALE is Virginia’s competitive process for picking transportation 

projects for funding and ensuring the best use of limited tax dollars. Transportation 

projects are scored based on an objective, outcome-based process. Once projects are 

scored and prioritized, the Commonwealth Transportation Board selects projects for 

funding. Project applications may be submitted by a variety of agencies 

(city/town/county/transit/MPO/PDC). Projects located within the MPO boundaries must 

be endorsed and supported by the MPO Executive Board. For FY24 (Round 5) two 

projects are being submitted within the Kingsport MTPO boundaries in Scott County. 

These projects consist of US-23 Access Management and Turn Lane Improvements 

(submitted by the MTPO) and US-23 at Chapel Street Safety and Railroad Crossing 

Improvements (submitted by Scott County). The Executive Board was asked to issue a 

Resolution of Support to be included with the SMART SCALE applications for these 

projects. A motion was made by Jimmy Adkins to approve the resolution for the Scott 

County VA SMART SCALE Projects and was seconded by Chase Milner. Passed in a 

roll call vote: Adkins, Ailor, Milner, Montgomery, Sawyer and Torbett voting “Aye”. 
 

C. Functional Classification Amendment/SR-126 Designation Change.  Presented by Lesley 

Phillips. Old Wilcox Drive’s current Functional Classification is Urban Local, which, 

based on how it functions, needs to be amended to Urban Minor Arterial. South Wilcox 

Drive’s Functional Classification is Urban Minor Arterial and will not change. In addition 



May 12, 2022 Minutes  Page 3 

to amending the Functional Classification of Old Wilcox Drive. The State Route 126 

designation will be transferred to Old Wilcox Drive. Currently, SR-126 follows Wilcox 

Drive from East Center Street past Meadowview Parkway then follows S. Wilcox Drive 

up the hill past the Social Security office to John B Dennis Highway (SR-93). Former 

City Manager Jeff Fleming previously requested that TDOT transfer the designation of 

SR-126 to follow Old Wilcox Drive in a more direct route to SR-93 and the I-26 ramp. 

TDOT has reviewed/approved these changes. A motion was made by Amber Torbett 

to approve the resolution for Functional Classification Amendment/SR-126 Designation 

Change and was seconded by Blake Ailor. Passed in a roll call vote: Adkins, Ailor, 

Milner, Montgomery, Sawyer and Torbett voting “Aye”. 
 

D. 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan Adoption.  Presented by Bill Albright.  Work 

toward the 2045 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) began in May 2020 with the 

RFQ process to select a consultant. A selection committee reviewed the proposals, 

interviewed the top three respondents, and ultimately selected AECOM as the 

consultant. AECOM began work on the 2045 LRTP in November 2020. Over the past 

18 months, the consultant team and MTPO staff have worked with the MTPO 

Executive Board, numerous partners, stakeholders, and interested parties to develop 

the draft 2045 LRTP. The draft plan was reviewed by TDOT, VDOT, and federal 

agencies and was available for public review/comment April 6, 2022 through May 6, 

2022. The Executive Board’s action will conclude approximately 2 years of work to 

complete the plan and continue the MTPO’s effort to promote, support, and fund 

numerous transportation projects and programs within the Kingsport MTPO area. A 

motion was made by Ronda Sawyer to approve the resolution adopting the 2045 Long 

Range Transportation Plan and was seconded by Blake Ailor. Passed in a roll call 

vote: Adkins, Ailor, Milner, Montgomery, Sawyer and Torbett voting “Aye””. 
 

E. Kingsport MTPO Local Road Safety Plan Presentation.  Presented by Sean 

Santalla/Lesley Phillips. A Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) is a locally-focused data-

driven plan that considers the unique and diverse safety issues of local roadways and 

provides a framework to improve safety and save lives. The process results in a 

prioritized list of issues, risks, actions, and improvements that can be used to reduce 

fatalities and serious injuries on the area roadways. For the past 6 months, Kingsport 

MTPO staff has worked with FHWA, a consultant team from VHB, and various 

stakeholders to develop a LRSP for the Kingsport MTPO planning area. The draft 

LRSP is expected soon. The consultant that was originally scheduled to give the 

presentation was unable to attend the meeting so their presentation will be given at a 

future meeting. Sean and Lesley gave an overview of the LRSP and some of the local 

findings. This agenda item is discussion only and no action is required. 
 

VI. PROJECT UPDATES/STATE AND FEDERAL PARTNER UPDATES 

Staff provided updates on projects as requested. State and Federal updates and 

information were provided by TDOT, VDOT, and FHWA representatives. 

 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Members of the public were invited to address the Executive Board 

with issues related to transportation planning issues, activities, and/or projects that pertain 

to the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization. Ken Taggart spoke 

about his concerns regarding SR-36. 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT:  There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned. 



May 12, 2022 Minutes  Page 4 

Attachment (DRPT update provided by Tiffany Dubinsky) 

 

Agency Update 

May 2022 

 

       

FY2023 Draft Six-Year Improvement Program 

 DRPT released its Fiscal Year 2023 Draft Six-Year Improvement Program on April 20, 
2022. A copy may be found on the DRPT Open Data Portal 
(https://data.drpt.virginia.gov/). 

 DRPT and VDOT are currently hosting in-person district public hearings to receive 

comments about the Fiscal Year 2023 Six-Year Improvement Program. Information on the 

public hearings may be found here: 

http://www.ctb.virginia.gov/planning/springmeetings2022/default.asp 

 

Transit Service and Delivery Advisory Committee 

 The Transit Service and Delivery Advisory Committee (TSDAC) has begun work on 

updates to the MERIT Capital and Operating programs and Transit Strategic Plan (TSP) 

guidelines. 

 Next scheduled TSDAC meeting is May 13, 2022 at the DRPT Office at 600 East Main 

Street, Suite 2102 in Richmond. Registration for online viewing may be found at 

https://www.drpt.virginia.gov/transit/tsdac/. 

 

HJ 542 Transit Equity and Modernization Study 

 The Virginia Transit Equity and Modernization Study team held a virtual forum on 

Thursday, April 21, 2022, from 10 a.m. to 11 a.m. 

 Draft Action Plan is available for public comment through May 13, 2022. More 

information may be found on the study website: www.vatransitmodernization.com 

 

DRPT Bike Month 

 DRPT is encouraging all Virginians to participate in Bike Month this May, promoting 

biking as a commuting option. 

 Bike to Work Day will be held on May 20, 2022. 

 Social media, advertising, and events will be held throughout the month, raising 

awareness about the benefits of biking and availability of trails throughout the 

Commonwealth. 

 Social media content and graphics are available to DRPT’s partners at 

https://bikeva.org/promotional- materials/ 

 Partner agencies should contact DRPT about their Bike Month events to be included on 

the Bike VA events calendar. 

https://data.drpt.virginia.gov/
http://www.ctb.virginia.gov/planning/springmeetings2022/default.asp
https://www.drpt.virginia.gov/transit/tsdac/
http://www.vatransitmodernization.com/
https://bikeva.org/promotional-materials/
https://bikeva.org/promotional-materials/


RESOLUTION BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE  
KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MTPO) 

 AMENDING THE KINGSPORT AREA FY 2020-2023 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

TIP AMENDMENT #9 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) is the designated 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Kingsport urbanized area in Tennessee and Virginia and is 
responsible for carrying out a comprehensive, cooperative, and continuing transportation planning process; and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport MTPO is responsible for programming funds for transportation projects in the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport Area FY 2020-2023 TIP is a document that continually evolves and needs amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Board of the Kingsport MTPO wishes to amend the FY 2020-2023 TIP by making the 

following changes as detailed in the attached TIP pages for Amendment #9: 

 Add funds to FY22 for the Virginia grouping for Maintenance: Preventive Maintenance for Bridges;

 Add funds to FY22 for the Virginia grouping for Maintenance: Traffic and Safety Operations; and

WHEREAS, TIP amendments comply with the requirements of the Kingsport MTPO’s Public Participation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport MTPO staff used criteria from Federal Metropolitan Transportation Planning regulations 

found in 23 CFR 450.316 and 450.326 to ensure compliance, and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation, amendments to the 

Transportation Improvement Program are to receive final approval from the Executive Board of the local 

Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION AS FOLLOWS:  

The proposed amendment to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program, which shall be known as TIP 

Amendment #9, is hereby approved as presented. 

RESOLUTION APPROVED: Date: 

Paul Montgomery, Chairman Lesley Phillips  
Kingsport MTPO Executive Board Kingsport MTPO Staff 

Agenda Item #4: TIP Amendment #9

PhillipsL
Highlight



METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS CERTIFICATION 
 
In accordance with 23 CFR 450.336, the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization and 
the Virginia Department of Transportation hereby certify that the metropolitan transportation planning 
process is addressing major issues facing the Kingsport, TN-VA urbanized area, and is being carried out in 
accordance with the following requirements: 

I.   23 U.S.C. 134 and 135, 49 U.S.C. 5303 and 5304 (Highways and Transit). 

II.   Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000 d-1) and 49 CFR part 21. 

III.   49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
 or age in employment or business opportunity. 

IV.   Section 1101 (b) of the FAST-Act (Pub. L 114-357) and 49 CFR part 26 regarding the involvement 
 of disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT-funded projects. 

V.   23 CFR part 230, regarding the implementation of an equal employment opportunity program 
 on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction contracts. 

VI.   Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq) and 49 CFR 
 parts 27, 37, and 38. 

VII.  In nonattainment and maintenance areas, sections 174 and 176 (c) and (d) of the Clean Air Act, 
 as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7504, 7506 (c) and (d), and 40 CFR part 93. 

VIII.  The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101), prohibiting discrimination on the basis 
 of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. 

IX.       Section 324 of Title 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of discrimination based on gender. 

X.       Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR part 27 regarding 
 discrimination against individuals with disabilities. 

 

 

_______________________                
Paul Montgomery, Chairman    Date  Lesley Phillips      Date 
Kingsport MTPO Executive Board   Kingsport MTPO Staff 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________       
Tabitha Crowder      Date     
Bristol District Engineer 
Virginia Department of Transportation 
 



Kingsport MPO
Project Groupings

2

MPO TIP Report 2/21/2020 1:14:36 PM

OLD PAGE



MPO TIP Report 5/24/2022 11:12:45 AM

Kingsport MPO
Project Groupings

TOTAL COST

FY21 FY23

CN $70,775 $1,000,000

$2,400,000 $6,558,217

$2,470,775 $7,558,217

MPO Note TIP AMD - add an addit'l $10,512,055 (NHPP) FFY22

Federal - STP/STBG $0 $4,220,686 $4,287,088

CN TOTAL $0 $15,732,741 $5,287,088

FUND SOURCE MATCH FY22 FY24

Federal - NHS/NHPP $0 $11,512,055 $1,000,000

GROUPING Maintenance : Preventive Maintenance for Bridges

PROGRAM NOTE Funding identified to be obligated districtwide as projects are identified.

ROUTE/STREET $31,048,821

 Federal funds include the use of soft match supported by approved toll credits unless otherwise indicated and/or matching funds are shown 
in the \"Match\" column.  Non-federal fund sources are as noted in the \"Program Note\" and show

AMENDED PAGE

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight



GROUPING Maintenance : Traffic and Safety Operations

PROGRAM NOTE Funding identified to be obligated districtwide as projects are identified.

ROUTE/STREET TOTAL COST $26,081,512

FUND SOURCE MATCH FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

CN Federal - NHFP $0 $2,500,000 $2,500,000 $0 $0

Federal - STP/STBG $0 $4,125,374 $4,306,141 $6,292,900 $6,357,097

CN TOTAL $0 $6,625,374 $6,806,141 $6,292,900 $6,357,097

3

MPO TIP Report 2/21/2020 1:14:36 PM

OLD PAGE



MPO TIP Report 5/24/2022 11:12:45 AM

Kingsport MPO
Project Groupings

TOTAL COST

FY21 FY23

CN $2,500,000 $0

$4,125,374 $6,292,900

$6,625,374 $6,292,900

MPO Note TIP AMD - add an addit'l $33,600,314 (STP/STBG) FFY22

Federal - STP/STBG $0 $37,906,455 $6,357,097

CN TOTAL $0 $40,406,455 $6,357,097

FUND SOURCE MATCH FY22 FY24

Federal - NHFP $0 $2,500,000 $0

GROUPING Maintenance : Traffic and Safety Operations

PROGRAM NOTE Funding identified to be obligated districtwide as projects are identified.

ROUTE/STREET $59,681,826

 Federal funds include the use of soft match supported by approved toll credits unless otherwise indicated and/or matching funds are shown 
in the \"Match\" column.  Non-federal fund sources are as noted in the \"Program Note\" and show

AMENDED PAGE

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight

PhillipsL
Highlight



RESOLUTION BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 OF THE KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 AMENDING THE KINGSPORT AREA FY 2020-2023 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

TIP AMENDMENT #10 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) is the designated 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Kingsport urbanized area in Tennessee and Virginia and is 
responsible for carrying out a comprehensive, cooperative, and continuing transportation planning process; and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport MTPO is responsible for programming funds for transportation projects in the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport Area FY 2020-2023 TIP is a document that continually evolves and needs amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Agreement between the Tennessee Department of Transportation and the 

Kingsport MTPO outlines the requirements to amend the TIP; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Board of the Kingsport MTPO wishes to amend the FY 2020-2023 TIP by adding funding to 

the FY22 CONST phase for TIP project #KPT-2015-002 (Main Street Kingsport) and increasing the total project cost 

as detailed in the attached TIP pages for Amendment #10; and  

WHEREAS, TIP amendments comply with the requirements of the Kingsport MTPO’s Public Participation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Kingsport MTPO staff used criteria from Federal Metropolitan Transportation Planning regulations 

found in 23 CFR 450.316 and 450.326 to ensure compliance, and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation, amendments to the 

Transportation Improvement Program are to receive final approval from the Executive Board of the local 

Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION AS FOLLOWS:  

The proposed amendment to the FY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program, which shall be known as TIP 

Amendment #10, is hereby approved as presented. 

RESOLUTION APPROVED: Date: 

Paul Montgomery, Chairman Lesley Phillips  
Kingsport MTPO Executive Board Kingsport MTPO Staff 

Agenda Item #5: TIP Amendment #10

PhillipsL
Highlight



METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS CERTIFICATION 
 
In accordance with 23 CFR 450.336, the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization and 
the Tennessee Department of Transportation hereby certify that the metropolitan transportation 
planning process is addressing major issues facing the Kingsport, TN-VA urbanized area, and is being 
carried out in accordance with the following requirements: 

I.   23 U.S.C. 134 and 135, 49 U.S.C. 5303 and 5304 (Highways and Transit). 

II.   Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000 d-1) and 49 CFR part 21. 

III.   49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
 or age in employment or business opportunity. 

IV.   Section 1101 (b) of the FAST-Act (Pub. L 114-357) and 49 CFR part 26 regarding the involvement 
 of disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT-funded projects. 

V.   23 CFR part 230, regarding the implementation of an equal employment opportunity program 
 on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction contracts. 

VI.   Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq) and 49 CFR 
 parts 27, 37, and 38. 

VII.  In nonattainment and maintenance areas, sections 174 and 176 (c) and (d) of the Clean Air Act, 
 as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7504, 7506 (c) and (d), and 40 CFR part 93. 

VIII.  The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101), prohibiting discrimination on the basis 
 of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. 

IX.       Section 324 of Title 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of discrimination based on gender. 

X.       Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR part 27 regarding 
 discrimination against individuals with disabilities. 

 

 

 

_______________________               
Paul Montgomery, Chairman      Date 
Kingsport MTPO Executive Board    
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________            
Lesley Phillips           Date 
Kingsport MTPO Staff 
 



TIP # KPT-2015-002 Priority Lead Agency City of Kingsport

County Sullivan Length 1.1 miles LRTP# Page # 4-6 NA

Route/Project Name $9,399,160

Termini or Intersection

Fiscal 

Year Funding Type Local Funds

FY20 L-STBG $6,000

FY20 L-STBG $20,000
    

FY21 L-STBG $10,000
   

FY22 CRRSAA-HIP $0

FY22 AC-L-STBG $7,888,388

Remarks 19

$0

Main Street from Sullivan Street to Market Street

TDOT PIN / VA UPC 123325.00

Conformity Status

Main Street Kingsport Rebuild Total Project Cost

Project Description Resurfacing, repairing curb, sidewalk, additions of bulbouts, ADA enhancements, removal of rail siding, diamond grinding, 

specific areas of sub-surface repair and rebuild.   

Phase Total Funds Fed Funds State Funds

$611,612 $0

PE-D $30,000 $24,000 $0

ROW $100,000 $80,000 $0

OLD PAGE

L-STBG funds obligated previously - PE-N = $118,400 (FY16), PE-D = $423,336 (FY17) & $26,240 (FY20), ROW = $17,200 (FY20), Adjust PE-N/PE-

D/ROW = $144,800 (FY21).

This project is subject to the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act 2021 (CRRSAA), division M, Public Law (Pub. L. No. 116-

260), enacted on December 27, 2020, and all applicable regulations and guidance. 

CONST $7,888,388 $0 $0

Amendment # Admin Modification #

PE-D $50,000 $40,000 $0

CONST $611,612



TIP # KPT-2015-002 Priority Lead Agency City of Kingsport

County Sullivan Length 1.1 miles LRTP# Page # 4-6 NA

Route/Project Name $17,162,470

Termini or Intersection

Fiscal 

Year Funding Type Local Funds

FY20 L-STBG $6,000

FY20 L-STBG $20,000
    

FY21 L-STBG $10,000
   

FY22 CRRSAA-HIP $0

FY22 L-STBG $3,127,678

Remarks

Main Street from Sullivan Street to Market Street

TDOT PIN / VA UPC 123325.00

Conformity Status

Main Street Kingsport Rebuild Total Project Cost

Project Description Resurfacing, repairing curb, sidewalk, additions of bulbouts, ADA enhancements, removal of rail siding, diamond grinding, 

specific areas of sub-surface repair and rebuild.   

Phase Total Funds Fed Funds State Funds

$0

ROW $100,000 $80,000 $0

L-STBG funds obligated previously - PE-N = $118,400 (FY16), PE-D = $423,336 (FY17) & $26,240 (FY20), ROW = $17,200 (FY20), Adjust PE-N/PE-

D/ROW = $144,800 (FY21), CONST = $611,612 CRRSAA funds (FY22).

This project is subject to the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act 2021 (CRRSAA), division M, Public Law (Pub. L. No. 116-

260), enacted on December 27, 2020, and all applicable regulations and guidance. 

CONST $15,638,388 $12,510,710 $0

Amendment # 10 Admin Modification #

AMENDED PAGE

PE-D $50,000 $40,000 $0

CONST $611,612 $611,612 $0

PE-D $30,000 $24,000



$8,830,089

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance

HSIP $400,000 $360,000 $40,000 $0 $0 $400,000 $0

HSIP-R $425 $383 $43 $0 $0 $425 $0

NHPP $385,000 $322,000 $63,000 $0 $0 $385,000 $0

R-STBG (State) $131,500 $105,200 $26,300 $0 $0 $131,500 $0

STBG (State) $12,150,000 $9,720,000 $2,430,000 $0 $0 $12,150,000 $0

STBG (Local)* $3,185,000 $2,565,000 $80,000 $540,000 $6,265,089 $1,553,905 $7,818,994

O & M (Local) $17,560,000 $0 $0 $17,560,000 $0 17,560,000 0

Totals: $33,811,925 $13,072,583 $2,639,343 $18,100,000 $0 $32,180,830 $7,818,994

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance
HSIP $78,125 $70,313 $7,813 $0 $0 $78,125 $0

HSIP-R $350 $315 $35 $0 $0 $350 $0

NHPP $8,000,000 $6,400,000 $1,600,000 $0 $0 $8,000,000 $0

STBG (State) $2,475,000 $1,980,000 $495,000 $0 $0 $2,475,000 $0

STBG (Local)* $200,000 $160,000 $0 $40,000 $7,658,994 $1,543,424 $9,202,418

O & M (Local) $17,735,600 $0 $0 $17,735,600 $0 $17,735,600 $0

Totals: $28,489,075 $8,610,628 $2,102,848 $17,775,600 $7,658,994 $29,832,499 $9,202,418

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance

ACSTBG $6,802,000 $0 $6,802,000 $0 $0 $6,802,000 $0

HSIP $200,000 $180,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $200,000 $0

HSIP-R $150 $135 $15 $0 $0 $150 $0

NHPP $8,150,000 $6,585,000 $1,565,000 $0 $0 $8,150,000 $0

STBG (State) $27,500,000 $22,000,000 $5,500,000 $0 $0 $27,500,000 0

STBG (Local)* $725,000 $580,000 $0 $143,000 $8,622,418 $1,594,311 $10,216,729

ACSTBG (Local) $7,888,388 $0 $0 $7,888,388 $0 $7,888,388 $0

CRRSAA-HIP $611,612 $611,612 $0 $0 $0 $611,612 $0

O & M (Local) $17,912,956 $0 $0 $17,912,956  $17,912,956 $0

Totals: $69,790,106 $29,956,747 $13,887,015 $25,944,344 $8,622,418 $70,659,417 $10,216,729

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance
HSIP $31,250 $28,125 $3,125 $0 $0 $31,250 $0

HSIP-R $75 $68 $8 $0 $0 $75 $0

NHPP $8,805,000 $7,914,000 $891,000 $0 $0 $8,805,000 $0

STBG (State) $37,500 $30,000 $7,500 $0 $0 $37,500 $0

STBG (Local)* $204,000 $163,200 $0 $40,800 $10,053,529 $1,594,311 $11,647,840

O & M (Local) $18,092,085 $0 $0 $18,092,085 $0 $18,092,085 $0

LOCAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 $0

Totals: $27,169,910 $8,135,393 $901,633 $18,132,885 $10,053,529 $31,560,221 $11,647,840

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

** suplus or deficit represents the MTPO's objective to maintain fiscal constraint for projects and funding designated within the Kingsport MTPO area

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY21

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY22

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY23

 Beg. Balance STBG (local):

Kingsport MTPO FY 2020 - 2023 TIP Highway Funding Summary

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY20

OLD PAGE



$8,830,089

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance

HSIP $400,000 $360,000 $40,000 $0 $0 $400,000 $0

HSIP-R $425 $383 $43 $0 $0 $425 $0

NHPP $385,000 $322,000 $63,000 $0 $0 $385,000 $0

R-STBG (State) $131,500 $105,200 $26,300 $0 $0 $131,500 $0

STBG (State) $12,150,000 $9,720,000 $2,430,000 $0 $0 $12,150,000 $0

STBG (Local)* $3,185,000 $2,565,000 $80,000 $540,000 $6,265,089 $1,553,905 $7,818,994

O & M (Local) $17,560,000 $0 $0 $17,560,000 $0 17,560,000 0

Totals: $33,811,925 $13,072,583 $2,639,343 $18,100,000 $0 $32,180,830 $7,818,994

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance
HSIP $78,125 $70,313 $7,813 $0 $0 $78,125 $0

HSIP-R $350 $315 $35 $0 $0 $350 $0

NHPP $8,000,000 $6,400,000 $1,600,000 $0 $0 $8,000,000 $0

STBG (State) $2,475,000 $1,980,000 $495,000 $0 $0 $2,475,000 $0

STBG (Local)* $200,000 $160,000 $0 $40,000 $7,658,994 $1,543,424 $9,202,418

O & M (Local) $17,735,600 $0 $0 $17,735,600 $0 $17,735,600 $0

Totals: $28,489,075 $8,610,628 $2,102,848 $17,775,600 $7,658,994 $29,832,499 $9,202,418

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance

ACSTBG $6,802,000 $0 $6,802,000 $0 $0 $6,802,000 $0

HSIP $200,000 $180,000 $20,000 $0 $0 $200,000 $0

HSIP-R $150 $135 $15 $0 $0 $150 $0

NHPP $8,150,000 $6,585,000 $1,565,000 $0 $0 $8,150,000 $0

STBG (State) $27,500,000 $22,000,000 $5,500,000 $0 $0 $27,500,000 0

STBG (Local)* $16,363,388 $13,090,710 $0 $3,270,678 -$3,888,292 $4,782,933 $894,641

ACSTBG (Local) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CRRSAA-HIP $611,612 $611,612 $0 $0 $0 $611,612 $0

O & M (Local) $17,912,956 $0 $0 $17,912,956  $17,912,956 $0

Totals: $77,540,106 $42,467,457 $13,887,015 $21,183,634 -$3,888,292 $65,959,651 $894,641

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

Funding Source

Total 

Programmed 

Funds

Programmed 

Federal Funds

Programmed  State 

Funds

Programmed 

Local Funds

Surplus / 

Deficit **

Anticipated 

Revenue

Available 

Unprogrammed 

Balance
HSIP $31,250 $28,125 $3,125 $0 $0 $31,250 $0

HSIP-R $75 $68 $8 $0 $0 $75 $0

NHPP $8,805,000 $7,914,000 $891,000 $0 $0 $8,805,000 $0

STBG (State) $37,500 $30,000 $7,500 $0 $0 $37,500 $0

STBG (Local)* $204,000 $163,200 $0 $40,800 $731,441 $0 $731,441

O & M (Local) $18,092,085 $0 $0 $18,092,085 $0 $18,092,085 $0

LOCAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 $0

Totals: $27,169,910 $8,135,393 $901,633 $18,132,885 $731,441 $29,965,910 $731,441

*The State Funds column for this line item refers to projects that may include the State's participation requiring the use of STBG funds

** suplus or deficit represents the MTPO's objective to maintain fiscal constraint for projects and funding designated within the Kingsport MTPO area

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY21

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY22

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY23

 Beg. Balance STBG (local):

Kingsport MTPO FY 2020 - 2023 TIP Highway Funding Summary

Tennessee Highway Totals for FY20

AMENDED PAGE



KINGSPORT METROPOLITAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION 

TITLE VI PLAN 

Updated 03/28/22 

Agenda Item #6: Kingsport MTPO Title VI Plan

PhillipsL
Highlight



Contents 
Self-Certification ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Abbreviations ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Title VI Plan ................................................................................................................................................... 5 

1. Metropolitan Planning .............................................................................................................................. 5 

2. Title VI Abstract ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

3. Title VI Program ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

3.1 Communications and Public Participation .......................................................................................... 8 

3.2 Planning and Programming ................................................................................................................. 8 

3.3 Advertisements and Consultant Contracts ......................................................................................... 9 

3.4 Education and Training ..................................................................................................................... 10 

3.5 Other Requirements ......................................................................................................................... 10 

a) Annual Certification and Assurance ............................................................................................ 10 

b) Complaint Process ....................................................................................................................... 11 

c) Record Title VI Activities ............................................................................................................. 11 

d) Access for LEP Persons ................................................................................................................ 11 

e) Timely Submission ...................................................................................................................... 11 

f) Reporting and Subrecipients ....................................................................................................... 11 

g) Compliance and Enforcement ..................................................................................................... 11 

h) Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits ....................................................................... 12 

i) Title VI Coordinator ..................................................................................................................... 12 

4. Environmental Justice ............................................................................................................................. 12 

Appendix A – Title VI Policy Statement ....................................................................................................... 13 

Appendix B – Title VI Complaint Investigation Procedure and Form.......................................................... 14 

Appendix C – List of Active Lawsuits ........................................................................................................... 20 

Appendix D – Limited English Proficiency Plan ........................................................................................... 22 

Appendix E – Title VI Nondiscrimination Assurances for FHWA ................................................................. 29 

Appendix F – Title VI Certifications and Assurances for FTA ...................................................................... 39 

Page 2



Self-Certification 

Page 3



Abbreviations 

3C Continuous, Cooperative, Comprehensive Transportation Planning Process 
CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
DOT Department of Transportation 
DRPT Department of Rail and Public Transportation 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
LEP Limited English Proficiency 
LRTP Long Range Transportation Plan 
MPA Metropolitan Planning Area 
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTPO Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization 
PPP Public Participation Plan 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
RFP Request for Proposal 
TCC Technical Coordinating Committee 
TDOT Tennessee Department of Transportation 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program 
USC United States Code 
VDOT Virginia Department of Transportation 

Page 4



Title VI Plan 

1. Metropolitan Planning 
Under current federal law, any urbanized area with a population over 50,000 must be in a Metropolitan 
Planning Area (MPA) for a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO). Urbanized Areas are determined 
by the United States Census Bureau. The MPA is the geographic area determined by agreement between 
the MPO for the area and the Governor, in which the metropolitan transportation planning process is 
carried out. At a minimum, the MPA must encompass the Census Urbanized Area and the contiguous 
geographic area likely to become urbanized within the next twenty (20) years. MPOs are important 
because they direct where and how available state and federal dollars for transportation improvements 
will be spent. Federal law requires the MPO to conduct transportation planning activities within the 
Urbanized Area in a continuous, cooperative, and comprehensive (3C) process as defined in federal 
legislation and regulations. 

The Kingsport metropolitan area became eligible for MPO status with the 1970 census. The Kingsport 
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) was established in 1977 through the efforts 
of the Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT), the Virginia Department of Transportation 
(VDOT), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The 
Kingsport MTPO is a bi-state MPO meaning the Kingsport Urbanized Area lies in two states (Tennessee 
and Virginia). In Tennessee, the Kingsport MTPO MPA consists of the City of Church Hill, the Town of 
Mount Carmel, the City of Kingsport, and portions of Hawkins County, Sullivan County, Washington 
County, and Greene County. In Virginia, the Kingsport MTPO MPA consists of the Town of Weber City, the 
Town of Gate City, and a portion of Scott County. Figure 1 shows the Kingsport MTPO Urbanized Area and 
the MPA boundary.  

The Kingsport MTPO is comprised of an Executive Board, a Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC), and 
administrative staff. The Executive Board is the overall governing body for the Kingsport MTPO. The 
Executive Board has the authority to adopt regional transportation plans and programs. The TCC will make 
recommendations to the MTPO Executive Board at key points during the planning process. The MTPO 
administrative staff is responsible for all planning and administrative functions of the MTPO and is housed 
as a division of the Public Works Department of the City of Kingsport. Figure 2 shows the Organizational 
Structure of the Kingsport MTPO. The MTPO staff serves as a liaison between the MTPO Executive Board, 
the Tennessee Department of Transportation, the Virginia Department of Transportation, the Virginia 
Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT), the Federal Highway Administration, and the 
Federal Transit Administration, local governments, and other groups and individuals interested in 
transportation issues within the MTPO area. The MTPO staff takes direction from, and is accountable to 
the MTPO Executive Board.  

 

 

  

Page 5



Figure 1 – Kingsport MTPO Planning Area 

 

 

Figure 2 – Kingsport MTPO Organizational Chart 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



2. Title VI Abstract 
Title VI, 42 USC 2000d et seq. was enacted as part of the landmark Civil Rights Act of 1964. It prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin in programs and activities receiving federal 
financial assistance.  

More specifically, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 states: “No person in the United States shall, on 
the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 
(42 U.S. Code 2000d) 

Title VI applies to all organizations that receive federal funds. The Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation 
Planning Organization (MTPO) receives federal funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), 
distributed through TDOT, VDOT, and DRPT. Therefore, the Kingsport MTPO is required to develop 
policies, programs, and practices that ensure transportation planning activities are performed in a manner 
that is nondiscriminatory as required under Title VI. 

In addition to Title VI, this document provides information regarding two Presidential Executive Orders 
pertaining to fairness and inclusiveness. Executive Order 12898 “Federal Actions to Address 
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations” mandates that federal 
agencies address equity and fairness, or Environmental Justice, toward low-income and minority 
populations. Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP)” mandates that federal agencies ensure that people who have Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to federally conducted and/or federally funded programs and 
activities.  

The MTPO’s Title VI, Environmental Justice, and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) policies and procedures 
are documented in this plan and its appendices. This plan will be updated periodically to incorporate 
changes and additional responsibilities that arise.  

3. Title VI Program 
To ensure Title VI compliance, Kingsport MTPO staff and the decision makers of its organizations and 
programs will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 

Kingsport MTPO staff evaluate and monitor compliance with nondiscrimination authorities in its:  
• Communications and Public Participation 
• Planning and Programming 
• Advertisements and Consultant Contracts 
• Education and Training 

 
To comply with Title VI, Kingsport MTPO: 

• Maintains current Title VI Assurances (Appendix E and Appendix F) 
• Promptly corrects any identified deficiency 
• Conducts regular reviews of program areas and contractors 
• Documents and prepares reports of Title VI efforts  

 

Page 7



3.1 Communications and Public Participation 
In compliance with 49 CFR 21.9(d), the MTPO shall provide information to the public regarding its Title VI 
obligations and apprise members of the public of the protections against discrimination afforded to them 
by Title VI by the following notice: 

The Kingsport MTPO operates is programs without regard to race, color, or national origin. For 
inquiries about the MTPO’s nondiscrimination policies, or to file a discrimination complaint, 
contact the Title VI Coordinator in the City of Kingsport Human Resources Office at 423-229-9401 
or HROffice@KingsportTN.gov . 

 
The MTPO shall seek out and consider viewpoints of minority, low-income, and LEP populations in the 
course of conducting public outreach and involvement activities in regards to proposed transportation 
decisions. The MTPO shall make every effort to include the following practices, consistent with the 
MTPO’s adopted Public Participation Plan (PPP): 

1. Coordination with individuals, institutions, or organizations and implementing 
community based public involvement strategies to reach out to members in the affected 
minority and/or low-income communities;  

2. Provision of opportunities for public participation through means other than written 
communication, such as personal interviews or use of audio or video recording devices to 
capture oral comments;  

3. Utilization of locations, facilities, and meeting times that are convenient and accessible to 
low-income and minority communities; 

4. Utilization of different meeting sizes or formats, or varying the type and number of news 
media used to announce public participation opportunities; and  

5. Implementation of the state Department of Transportation’s policy guidance regarding 
the responsibilities to LEP persons.  

6. The MTPO maintains a website where all current information is posted. Social media 
accounts operated by the City of Kingsport are also utilized. Email comments may be 
submitted through MTPO@KingsportTN.gov at any time.  

 

3.2 Planning and Programming 
The MTPO is responsible for developing long and short-range transportation plans and programs to 
provide efficient transportation services for the Kingsport Metropolitan Area. A comprehensive process is 
used which entails the monitoring and collection of various data pertaining to transportation issues. To 
ensure compliance in planning and programming, MTPO staff will: 

• Ensure that all aspects of the planning and programming process comply with nondiscrimination 
authorities. 

• Prepare and update a demographic profile of the region using the most current and appropriate 
statistical information available on race, income, and other pertinent data.  

• Use US Census Bureau Decennial data, US Census Bureau American Community Survey data, and 
local knowledge of the area to identify the locations and needs of socioeconomic groups, including 
low-income, LEP, and minority populations. Other potential sources of data include school 
districts, forms or surveys, land use plans, geographic information systems, and transportation 
models.  

Page 8

mailto:HROffice@KingsportTN.gov
mailto:MTPO@KingsportTN.gov


• Review directives to determine if there are Title VI implications and interpret how directives 
impact Title VI program areas. Types of date analysis to address compliance with Title VI may 
include: 

o Distribution of benefits (dollars, facilities, systems, projects) by groups and communities; 
o Allocation of funds by mode (highway, transit, etc.); 
o Impact of investments on race, color, or national origin; 
o Projected population increases versus planned facilities and types of facilities; 
o Impacts of the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with a project; 
o Alternatives to modes, locations, and types of facilities; 
o Language needs assessment (see Appendix D – Limited English Proficiency Plan for a 

breakdown of Race and Language Spoken at Home demographics); 
o Transportation needs of all persons within boundaries of plans or projects; 
o Persons included in the decision-making process;  
o Strategies to address impacts;  
o Priorities for investments; 
o Strategies to disseminate information. 

• When determining compliance with Title VI, the Kingsport MTPO may consider the following: 
o The manner in which services are or will be provided and the related data necessary for 

determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of their 
race, color, or national origin as defined by Title VI authorities; 

o The population eligible to be served by race, color, and national origin; 
o The location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related 

information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of 
unnecessarily denying access to any persons on the bases of prohibited discrimination; 

o Where determination of location is involved, the requirements and steps used or 
proposed to guard against unnecessary impact on persons on the basis of race, color, and 
national origin. 

• Continue to ensure that staff makes concerted efforts to involve members of all social, economic, 
and ethnic groups in the planning process.  

 

3.3 Advertisements and Consultant Contracts 
The following language will be included in all Kingsport MTPO Requests for Proposals (RFP) and Requests 
for Qualifications (RFQ): “The Kingsport MTPO in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 42 US.C. 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, hereby notifies all bidders 
that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, 
disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to 
this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in 
consideration for an award.” 

 
The provisions of U.S. DOT 1050.2A Appendix A and Appendix E will be included in contracts and 
agreements initiated by the Kingsport MTPO. DOT Order 1050.2A Standard Title VI Assurances and Non-
Discrimination Provisions (which includes the appendices referenced above) is attached as Appendix E. 

Page 9



The Kingsport MTPO is responsible for selection, negotiation, and administration of its 
contractor/consultant contracts. The Kingsport MTPO operates under its internal contract procedures and 
all applicable federal and state laws. Kingsport MTPO staff will: 

• Ensure inclusion of nondiscrimination language in contracts and Requests for Proposals (RFP) and 
Requests for Qualifications (RFQ). 

• Contractors/consultants must implement policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination. 
• Kingsport MTPO staff and the Title VI Coordinator will periodically monitor Title VI plans and 

program implementation.   
• Ensure that all contractors/consultants verify their compliance with nondiscrimination 

authorities, procedures, and requirements. 
• On an annual basis, Kingsport MTPO staff will conduct a review of select contractors/consultants 

to ensure they are complying with Title VI requirements and that federal funds are not being spent 
in any way that results in discrimination (intentional or unintentional).  

• During a review, the task of MTPO staff is to evaluate whether the contractor/consultant is 
effectively implementing Title VI requirements.  

• If a contractor/consultant is found to be in noncompliance with nondiscrimination authorities, the 
Title VI Coordinator and relevant staff will work with the contractor/consultant to resolve the 
deficiency status and write a remedial action if necessary. See section 3.5-g (Compliance and 
Enforcement) for more details.  

• Review outreach activities to ensure small, disadvantaged, minority, women, and disabled 
veteran businesses are not excluded to participate in opportunities to compete for 
contractor/consultant contracts.  

 

3.4 Education and Training 
All Kingsport MTPO staff most recently completed Title VI training in Fall 2021 as required by the City of 
Kingsport Human Resources Department. To ensure compliance through education and training, 
nondiscrimination training will be made available to all Kingsport MTPO staff to ensure up-to-date 
knowledge of Title VI and other nondiscrimination statutes.  

Under the category of education and training, nondiscrimination responsibilities include: 
• Distribution of information to Kingsport MTPO staff on training programs regarding Title VI and 

related statutes. 
• Tracking staff participation in nondiscrimination training. 
• Maintain and update nondiscrimination training as necessary.  
• Maintain and update the Kingsport MTPO Title VI Plan as necessary. 

 

3.5 Other Requirements 
a) Annual Certification and Assurance 

As part of the annual Certifications and Assurances, the MTPO submits a Nondiscrimination 
Assurance which addresses compliance with Title VI as well as other nondiscrimination 
regulations and statutes. In signing and submitting this assurance, the MTPO confirms the 
agency’s commitment to nondiscrimination and compliance with federal and state requirements.  

Page 10



b) Complaint Process 
In compliance with 49 CFR Section 21.9(b), the MTPO has developed procedures for investigating 
and tracking Title VI complaints filed against them. Such procedures shall be made available to 
the public upon request. The MTPO’s complaint investigation procedures and complaint form are 
contained herein as Appendix B.  

c) Record Title VI Activities 
In compliance with 49 CFR Section 21.9(b), the City shall prepare and maintain a list of any active 
investigations, lawsuits, or complaints naming the MTPO or City that allege discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, or national origin. Record logs are contained herein as Appendix C. Such list 
on the log sheet shall include:  

1. Date the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint was filed;  
2. Summary of the allegation(s); 
3. Status of the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint; and 
4. Actions taken by the City/MTPO in response to the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint. 

d) Access for LEP Persons 
The MTPO shall take steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits, services, information, and 
other important portions of the programs and activities for individuals who are Limited English 
Proficient (LEP). The MTPO will assist persons with Limited English Proficiency to participate in the 
transportation planning process. MTPO staff will make every effort to provide translators and 
document translation, where feasible, upon request. The LEP Plan is contained herein as Appendix 
D.  

e) Timely Submission 
The MTPO acknowledges that its Title VI submissions and/or updates thereto, shall be supplied 
once every three (3) years, or as requested. The submission shall include, but is not limited to: 

1. A summary of public outreach and involvement activities undertaken since the last 
submission and a description of steps taken to ensure that minority and low-income 
people had meaningful access to these activities;  

2. The process for persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP);  
3. Title VI Complaint and Tracking procedures; 
4. A list of any Title VI investigations, complaints, or lawsuits filed since the last submission; 
5. A copy of the public notice regarding Title VI compliance and public access and 

instructions for the Title VI complaint procedures. 
f) Reporting and Subrecipients 

The Kingsport MTPO is a subrecipient to TDOT, VDOT, and DRPT. The Civil Rights Offices of TDOT 
and VDOT monitor the Kingsport MTPO for civil rights compliance. A triennial assessment report 
is required to be submitted to the Civil Rights Office and Title VI assurances are provided annually. 
No funds are passed through the Kingsport MTPO to subrecipients, so the subject of monitoring 
subrecipients will not be addressed in this document.  

g) Compliance and Enforcement 
Kingsport MTPO staff will perform periodic self-assessments for Title VI compliance of MTPO 
plans, programs, and activities including contractor/consultant activities. If deficiencies are found, 
the Title VI Coordinator will provide technical assistance, as needed, and work with the MTPO 

Page 11



staff, contractors/consultants to ensure the deficiency is corrected and compliance is achieved 
and maintained. Voluntary compliance is preferred; therefore, the Title VI Coordinator will first 
attempt to secure compliance through informal means. If the matter cannot be resolved 
informally, a Letter of Findings will be issued informing the MTPO staff/contractor/consultant of 
the areas of noncompliance and the steps that must be taken to correct the noncompliance. If 
the issue is still not resolved, the matter will be elevated to TDOT/VDOT and FHWA.  

h) Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 
To date, the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization has had no Title VI 
investigations, complaints, or lawsuits filed against them.  

i) Title VI Coordinator 
The City of Kingsport Human Resources Director is the designated Title VI Coordinator: Tyra 
Copas, (423) 224-2448, email TyraCopas@KingsportTN.gov. The secondary contact for Title VI 
issues is Tonya Fletcher, (423) 224-2471, email TonyaFletcher@KingsportTN.gov.  

4. Environmental Justice 
Presidential Executive Order 12898, signed in 1994, directed every Federal agency to make Environmental 
Justice part of its mission by identifying and addressing the effects of all programs, policies, and activities 
on minority populations and low-income populations. According to the FHWA, the U.S.DOT’s 
Environmental Justice initiatives accomplish this goal by involving the potentially affected public in 
developing transportation projects that fit harmoniously within their communities without sacrificing 
safety or mobility.  

The Kingsport MTPO serves as the primary forum for TDOT, VDOT, DRPT, transit providers, local agencies 
and jurisdictions, and the public to develop local transportation plans and programs that address our 
area’s needs. As such, in order to comply with Title VI and address Environmental Justice, the MTPO needs 
to: 

• Enhance their analytical capabilities to ensure that the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) and 
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) comply with Title VI. 

• Identify residential, employment, and transportation patterns of low-income and minority 
populations so that their needs can be identified and addressed, and the benefits and burdens of 
transportation investments can be fairly distributed.  

• Evaluate and – where necessary – improve their public involvement processes to eliminate 
participation barriers and engage minority and low-income populations in transportation decision 
making.  

The Kingsport MTPO will ensure that its planning and decision making process follows the requirements 
for Title VI and Environmental Justice. 

  

Page 12

mailto:TyraCopas@KingsportTN.gov
mailto:TonyaFletcher@KingsportTN.gov


Appendix A – Title VI Policy Statement 
 

 

  

Page 13



Appendix B – Title VI Complaint Investigation Procedure and Form 
 

Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) 
Title VI Complaint Investigation Procedure 

 
 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act requires that “No person in the United States shall, on the 
ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance.”  
 
These procedures apply to all complaints filed under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
are intended to provide aggrieved persons an avenue to file complaints of discrimination 
regarding the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization’s (MTPO) programs 
and activities. Intimidation or retaliation of any kind is prohibited by law. These procedures do 
not deny the right of the complainant to file formal complaints with other local, state, or federal 
agencies, or to seek private counsel for complaints alleging discrimination.  
 
Persons Eligible to File a Complaint: 
Any individual, group of individuals, or entity that believes they have been subjected to 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin in the programs and activities of the 
Kingsport MTPO may file a Title VI complaint.   
 
Complaint Basis: 
Complaints of alleged discrimination must be based on issues involving race, color, or national 
origin. Discrimination under Title VI is an act (or action) whether intentional or unintentional 
through which a person in the United States, solely because of race, color, or national origin has 
been otherwise subjected to unequal treatment or disparate impact under any program or 
activity receiving federal financial assistance.  
 
Filing Time: 
According to USDOT regulations, 49 CFR §21.11(b), a complaint must be filed not later than 180 
days after the date of the last instance of alleged discrimination, unless the time for filing is 
extended by the processing agency.   
 
Form of Complaints: 

• Complaint shall be in writing and signed by the complainant(s) or representative(s). 
• Complainant’s name, address, and telephone number, or other means by which the 

complainant may be contacted.  
• Include the date of the alleged act of discrimination. 
• Present a detailed description of the issues, including names and job titles of those 

individuals perceived as parties in the complaint issue. 

Page 14



• Allegations received by fax or email will be acknowledged and processed once the 
identity(ies) of the complainant(s) has been confirmed. The complainant is required to 
mail a signed, original copy of the fax or email transmittal before the complaint can be 
processed.   

• Allegations received by phone will be reduced to writing and provided to complainant for 
confirmation, revision, and signature before processing.  

 
Complaint Review Process: 
A Title VI Complaint Form has been prepared for complainants to use, at their discretion, to file 
their complaint with the City of Kingsport, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the 
Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT), or the Virginia Department of Transportation 
(VDOT). Contact information for each agency is included on the complaint form. The investigation 
will address only those issues relevant to the allegations in the complaint. Confidentiality will be 
maintained to the fullest extent possible. 
 
Upon receipt of the complaint, the City of Kingsport Title VI Coordinator will review it to ensure 
that relevant information is provided, the complaint is timely, and is within the correct 
jurisdiction. The Title VI Coordinator will maintain a log of all complaints.  
 
Complaints filed against the Kingsport MTPO or contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, etc. 
of the MTPO will follow these procedures: 

• All complaints will be routed to the FHWA Headquarters Office of Civil Rights (HCR), through 
the appropriate hierarchy, for processing. HCR is responsible for all determinations regarding 
whether to accept, dismiss, or transfer Title VI complaints filed against TDOT/VDOT, the 
Kingsport MTPO, or contractors/sub-contractors/consultants of the MTPO. 

• Complaints will be forwarded from the initial receiving agency through the Federal-aid 
highway oversight hierarchy until the complaint reaches HCR. For example, if a complaint is 
filed with the Kingsport MTPO, that agency should forward the complaint to TDOT/VDOT 
(within three business days), which should forward the complaint to the State’s FHWA 
Division Office, which should forward the complaint to HCR. If a complaint is filed with 
TDOT/VDOT, then that agency should forward the complaint to the State’s FHWA Division 
Office, which should forward the complaint to HCR. 

• TDOT/VDOT and the Kingsport MTPO must log all complaints received. 
• When HCR decides on whether to accept, dismiss, or transfer the complaint, HCR will notify 

the Complainant, the FHWA Division Office, TDOT/VDOT, and the Kingsport MTPO (where 
applicable). 

 
  

Page 15



 
 
 

 
Title VI Complaint Form 

 

Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act requires that “No person in the United States shall, on the 
ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance.” The purpose of this form is to assist you in filing a Title VI complaint against the 
Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO), a department of the City 
of Kingsport or contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, etc. of the MTPO.  
 
This form can be found online at: https://www.kingsporttn.gov/city-services/kmtpo/civil-rights/  
 
Written, signed complaints should be submitted to: 
  
City of Kingsport – Human Resources   Phone: 423-224-2448  
 Title VI Coordinator    Email: TyraCopas@KingsportTN.gov   
 415 Broad Street     
 Kingsport, TN 37660 
 
If you wish to file directly with another agency, you may use this form to file a Title VI complaint 
with the Civil Rights Division of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Tennessee 
Department of Transportation (TDOT), or Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). You are 
not required to use this form. A letter containing the same information is sufficient; however, all 
information included in this form is necessary to assist in processing your complaint. If you 
require assistance in completing this form, please let us know.  
 
A written, signed complaint must be filed within 180 calendar days after the date of the alleged 
discrimination.  
    Federal Highway Administration 
    US Department of Transportation 
    Office of Civil Rights 
    1200 New Jersey Ave, SE 
    8th Floor E81-105 
    Washington, DC 20590  
    Phone: 202-366-0693 
    Email: FHWA.TitleVIcomplaints@dot.gov  
 
Tennessee Department of Transportation  Virginia Department of Transportation 
Civil Rights Division     Civil Rights Division 
Attention: Title VI Program Director   Attention: Civil Rights Division Administrator 
505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1800   1401 E Broad Street 
Nashville, TN 37243     Richmond, VA 23219 
Phone: 615-741-3681     Phone: 804-786-2085  
Email: Cynthia.Howard@tn.gov    Email: Sandra.Norman@vdot.virginia.gov 

Page 16

https://www.kingsporttn.gov/city-services/kmtpo/civil-rights/
mailto:TyraCopas@KingsportTN.gov
mailto:FHWA.TitleVIcomplaints@dot.gov
mailto:Cynthia.Howard@tn.gov
mailto:Sandra.Norman@vdot.virginia.gov


Title VI Complaint Information 

 
1. Complainant Information 
 
Name:              
 
Address:             
 
City, State, Zip:            
 
Telephone:      Email:        
 
 
2. Person(s) Discriminated Against (if someone other than complainant)  
 
Name:              
 
Address:             
 
City, State, Zip:            
 
Telephone:      Email:        
 
 
3. Agency and Department/Program Complaint is Filed Against 
 
Agency/Department/Program:          
 
Individual (if known):            
 
Address:             
 
City, State, Zip:            
 
Telephone:      Email:        
 
 
4. Which of the following best describes the reason you believe the discrimination took 
place? Was it because of: 
 
  Race    
  Color    
  National Origin     
 
 

Page 17



5. What date did the alleged discrimination occur?        
 
 
6. In your own words, describe the alleged discrimination. Explain what happened and whom 
you believe was responsible. Include all relevant information. Please use additional sheets if 
necessary and attach a copy of written materials pertaining to your case.  
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
 
7. Please list below any persons (witnesses, employees, supervisors, others), if known, whom 
we may contact for additional information to support of clarify your complaint. 
 
   Name      Phone # 
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
  

Page 18



 
8. Have you, or the person discriminated against, filed the same or any other complaints with 
any other federal, state, or local agency; or with any federal or state court? 
 
    Yes    No 
 
If Yes, provide the date and the complaint was filed:       
 
Contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed: 
 
Name:              
 
Address:             
 
City, State, Zip:            
 
Telephone:      Email:        
 
 
9. Please sign and date below. A complaint that has not been signed cannot be accepted. 
 
 
              
Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please attach any written materials/other information you think are relevant to your complaint.  
 

Page 19



Appendix C – List of Active Lawsuits 
 

 

 

  

Page 20



  

Page 21



Appendix D – Limited English Proficiency Plan 
LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN 
This document serves as the plan for the Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization 
(MTPO) to provide services to Limited English Proficiency (LEP) individuals in compliance with Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Executive Order 13166: Improving Access to Service for Persons with 
Limited English Proficiency. This plan was developed to help identify reasonable steps to provide language 
assistance for LEP persons to participate in the transportation planning process. The following Four Factor 
Analysis was conducted to ensure meaningful and appropriate access for LEP individuals identified in the 
Kingsport TN/VA Urbanized Area.  
 
FOUR FACTOR ANALYSIS 
 
Factor 1: Number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by a 
program, activity, or service of the grantee. 
 
According to the US Census Bureau American Community Survey 5-year Estimates (2015-2019), 
approximately 2.8% of the Kingsport TN/VA Urbanized Area population speaks a language other than 
English at home with the majority of those households (1.6%) speaking Spanish. A total of 0.7% of the 
population age 5 and over speak English less than “very well”. The following tables provide the racial 
makeup and the language spoken at home for the Kingsport TN/VA Urbanized Area.  
 

Page 22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Factor 2: The frequency with which LEP individuals come into contact with the program, activity, or 
service.  
 
The Kingsport MTPO staff assessed, as accurately as possible, the frequency with which LEP individuals 
come in contact with any programs, activities, or services that have been provided by the MTPO in the 
past. To date, there have been no requests, formal or otherwise, by LEP individuals seeking the translation 
of documents or interpreters at public meetings. To date, MTPO staff have not encountered a situation 
with any individual who did not speak English very well.  
 
Factor 3: The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the Kingsport 
MTPO to the community.  
 
Transportation is vital to many people’s lives. The Kingsport MTPO uses federal funds to plan 
transportation projects. The MTPO seeks to include all segments of the population, including LEP 
individuals, in the transportation planning and decision making process. The steps that are taken for public 

Page 23



outreach are detailed in the Public Participation Plan, which can be found on our website 
www.kptmtpo.com and in the Kingsport MTPO office.  
 
Factor 4: The resources available to the Kingsport MTPO and costs.  
 
The Kingsport MTPO ensures that efforts are made to include LEP individuals and provide them with the 
opportunity to be involved in the transportation planning process. These services are provided at no cost 
to the LEP individual. Resources that are currently provided for language assistance and the estimated 
costs to the Kingsport MTPO are: 

• Telephone interpreter service is available, provided by Worldwide Interpreters, with a language 
identification guide available to MTPO staff to assist with identifying the LEP individual’s native 
language. (Cost is 0.65 cents per minute.) 

• Document translation as requested. (Cost varies per document.) 
• The City of Kingsport/Kingsport MTPO website meets all standards when it comes to translating 

content for viewers who prefer a language other than English. The Wordpress Content 
Management System (CMS) that the site is built upon easily allows browsers and operating 
systems to translate the page into another language. (Included with website fees – no additional 
cost.) 

 
Other services can be provided; however, the cost of such service would have to be considered. Funds 
available to the MTPO for LEP services would be derived entirely from existing operating budgets and 
compete with other operational requirements on an annual basis.  
  

Page 24

http://www.kptmtpo.com/


Kingsport MTPO/City of Kingsport = 1-800-207-1424 (PIN 56123)
Page 25



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

LANGUAGE IDENTIFICATION FLASHCARD

1. Arabic

2. Armenian

3. Bengali

4. Cambodian

5. Chamorro

6. Simplified
Chinese

7. Traditional
Chinese

8.Croatian

9. Czech

10. Dutch

11. English

12. Farsi

Mark this box if you read or speak English.

2010

Motka i kahhon ya yangin ûntûngnu' manaitai pat ûntûngnu' kumentos Chamorro.

QUmbJÇak'kñ¨g®b/b'enH ebI/ñk/an …niXaXPasa e‡oµe .

Kruis dit vakje aan als u Nederlands kunt lezen of spreken.

Zaškrtněte tuto kolonku, pokud čtete a hovoříte česky.

Označite ovaj kvadratić ako čitate ili govorite hrvatski jezik.

2004 
Census 

Test

.á«Hô©dG çóëàJ hCG CGô≤J âæc GPEG ™HôŸG Gòg ‘ áeÓY ™°V

Page 26



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

14. German

15. Greek

16. Haitian
Creole

17. Hindi

18. Hmong

19. Hungarian

20. Ilocano

21. Italian

22. Japanese

23. Korean

24. Laotian

25. Polish

13. FrenchCocher ici si vous lisez ou parlez le français.

Kreuzen Sie dieses Kästchen an, wenn Sie Deutsch lesen oder sprechen.

Make kazye sa a si ou li oswa ou pale kreyòl ayisyen.

Markaam daytoy nga kahon no makabasa wenno makasaoka iti Ilocano.

Marchi questa casella se legge o parla italiano.

Jelölje meg ezt a kockát, ha megérti vagy beszéli a magyar nyelvet.

Kos lub voj no yog koj paub twm thiab hais lus Hmoob.

Prosimy o zaznaczenie tego kwadratu, jeżeli posługuje się Pan/Pani 
językiem polskim.

Page 27



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

27. Romanian

28. Russian

29. Serbian

30. Slovak

31. Spanish

32. Tagalog

33. Thai

34. Tongan

35. Ukranian

36. Urdu

37. Vietnamese

38. Yiddish

26. PortugueseAssinale este quadrado se você lê ou fala português.

Označte tento štvorček, ak viete čítať alebo hovoriť po slovensky.

Markahan itong kuwadrado kung kayo ay marunong magbasa o magsalita ng Tagalog.

Marque esta casilla si lee o habla español.

�ометьте этот квадратик, если вы читаете или говорите по-русски.

Maaka 'i he puha ni kapau 'oku ke lau pe lea fakatonga.

�ідмітьте цю клітинку, якщо ви читаєте або говорите українською мовою.

Xin ñaùnh daáu vaøo oâ naøy neáu quyù vò bieát ñoïc vaø noùi ñöôïc Vieät Ngöõ.

Page 28



Appendix E – Title VI Nondiscrimination Assurances for FHWA 

Page 29



 

Kingsport Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (MTPO) 
TITLE VI / NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE 

(DOT Order  No. 1050.2A) 

 

The Kingsport MTPO, (herein referred to as the “Recipient”), HEREBY AGREES THAT, as 
a condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT), through the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), is subject to and will 
comply  with the following: 

Statutory/Regulatory Authorities 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); 

• 49 C.F.R. Part 21 (entitled Nondiscrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The 
Department Of Transportation – Effectuation Of Title VI Of The Civil Rights Act Of 1964); 

• 28 C.F.R. section 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the "Acts" and 
"Regulations," respectively. 

General Assurance 

In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, 
memoranda, and/or guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any 
measures necessary to ensure that: 

"No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity," for which the Recipient receives Federal 
financial assistance from DOT, including the Federal Highway Administration. 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect 
to Title VI and other Nondiscrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institutional-wide 
scope and coverage of these nondiscrimination statutes and requirements to include all programs 
and activities of the Recipient, so long as any portion of the program is Federally assisted. 

Specific Assurances 

More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with 
and gives the following Assurances with respect to its federally assisted Highway Program:  

1.  The Recipient agrees that each "activity," "facility," or "program," as defined in §§ 21.23 
(b) and 21.23 (e) of 49 C.F.R.  § 21 will be (with regard to an "activity") facilitated, or 
will be (with regard to a "facility") operated, or will be (with regard to a "program") 

Page 30



conducted in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the 
Regulations. 

2.   The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests 
For Proposals for work, or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in 
connection with all Federal-Aid Highway Program and, in adapted form, in all proposals 
for negotiated agreements regardless of funding source: 

"The Kingsport MTPO in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 US.C.§§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the 
Regulations,  hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively  ensure that 
any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged  
business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in 
response to this invitation and will not be discriminated  against on the grounds 
of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award." 

3.  The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix A and E of this Assurance in every contract 
or agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations. 

4.  The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance, as a covenant running 
with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real 
property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient. 

5.  That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part 
of a facility, the Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in 
connection therewith. 

6.  That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the 
acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights 
to space on, over, or under such property. 

7.  That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in Appendix C and Appendix  D of this 
Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, 
or similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with other parties: 

a.  for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable 
activity, project, or program; and 

b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired 
or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program. 

8.  That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial 
assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to 
provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or 
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, 
or any transferee for the longer of the following periods: 

a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal 
financial assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of 
similar services or benefits; or 

b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property. 

Page 31



Page 32



A 

APPENDIX A 
Contractor/ Consultant/Supplier Agreement:  U.S. DOT 1050.2A -- Appendix A 

 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors 
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

 
1.   Compliance with  Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter  includes consultants) will 

comply with the Acts and the Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination  in Federally-
assisted  programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway 
Administration, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated 
by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 
2.   Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the 

contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the 
selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases 
of equipment.  The contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices 
when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 
CFR Part 21. 

 
3.  Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all 

solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for 
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases 
of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor 
of the contractor's obligations  under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative 
to Nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.  

 
4.   Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required 

by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access 
to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be 
determined by the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to 
ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions.  Where any 
information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails 
or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the 
Federal Highway Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has 
made to obtain the information. 

 
5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non- 

discrimination provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract 
sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor 
complies; and/or  

b.   cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 
 

Page 33



A 

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one 
through six in every subcontract,  including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations  and directives issued pursuant 
thereto.  The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement 
as the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the 
contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or 
supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into 
any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient.  In addition, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States. 

 

Page 34



B 

APPENDIX B 
CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY 

 
The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, 
structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the 
provisions of Assurance 4: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized  by law and upon the 
condition that the Kingsport MTPO will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed 
thereon in accordance with the Virginia General Assembly, the Regulations for the Administration  of 
the Federal-Aid Highway Program and the policies and procedures prescribed by the Federal Highway 
Administration of the U.S. Department  of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all 
requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted  programs of the 
U.S Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim 
and convey unto the Kingsport MTPO all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department  of 
Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 

(HABENDUM CLAUSE) 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the Kingsport MTPO and its successors 
forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations  herein contained 
as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are 
used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving 
the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the Kingsport MTPO, its successors 
and assigns. 
 
The Kingsport MTPO in consideration  of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does 
hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that 
(1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination  with regard to any facility located 
wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the Kingsport MTPO 
will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed,  in compliance with all 
requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department  of 
Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted 
programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended[, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of 
the above-mentioned non-discrimination  conditions, the Department  will have a right to enter or re-
enter said lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land and facilities will thereon revert 
to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns 
as such interest existed prior to this instruction].* 
 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

Page 35



C 

APPENDIX C 
CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER 

THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM  
 
 
 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments 
entered into by the Kingsport MTPO pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a): 
 
A.  The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal 

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration  hereof, does 
hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the 
land"] that: 

 
1.  In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property 

described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. 
Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, 
lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in 
compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be 
amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be 
excluded from participation  in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities. 

 
B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above 

Nondiscrimination covenants, the Kingsport MTPO will have the right to terminate the (lease, 
license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and 
hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.* 

 
C.  With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, 

the Kingsport MTPO will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, and 
the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the 
absolute property of the Kingsport MTPO and its assigns.* 

 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 

necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
 

 
 

Page 36



D 

APPENDIX D 
CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER 

THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 
 
 
 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements 
entered into by the Kingsport MTPO pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b): 
 
A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal 

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does 
hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the 
land") that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from 
participation  in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of 
said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and 
the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will 
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to 
discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in 
compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as 
amended, set forth in this Assurance. 

 
B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above 

Nondiscrimination covenants, the Kingsport MTPO will have the right to terminate the (license, 
permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities 
thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made 
or issued.* 

 
C.  With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, 

the Kingsport MTPO will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of 
the Kingsport MTPO and its assigns.* 

 
 
 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 

necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 37



E 

APPENDIX E 
Contractor/ Consultant/Supplier Agreements:  U.S. DOT 1050.2A -- Appendix E 

 
 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 
 
Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities: 
 
 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21; 
 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 

U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been 
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

 Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of sex); 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age); 

 Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs 
or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients 
and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis 
of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of 
public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 -- 12189) as implemented 
by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

 The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

 Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and 
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

 Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination 
because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take 
reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. 
Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

 

Page 38



Appendix F – Title VI Certifications and Assurances for FTA 

 
 

 

Page 39



Not every provision of every certification will apply to every applicant or award. If a provision 
of a certification does not apply to the applicant or its award, FTA will not enforce that 
provision. Refer to FTA’s accompanying Instructions document for more information. 

Text in italics is guidance to the public. It does not have the force and effect of law, and is not 
meant to bind the public in any way. It is intended only to provide clarity to the public regarding 
existing requirements under the law or agency policies. 

CATEGORY 1. CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES REQUIRED OF EVERY 
APPLICANT. 

All applicants must make the certifications in this category. 

1.1. Standard Assurances. 

The certifications in this subcategory appear as part of the applicant’s registration or annual 
registration renewal in the System for Award Management (SAM.gov) and on the Office of 
Management and Budget’s standard form 424B “Assurances—Non-Construction Programs”. 
This certification has been modified in places to include analogous certifications required by 
U.S. DOT statutes or regulations. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, you certify that the applicant: 

(a) Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, managerial 
and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project 
cost) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in 
this application. 

(b) Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if 
appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to 
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish 
a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards 
or agency directives. 

(c) Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose 
that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of 
interest, or personal gain. 

(d) Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of 
approval of the awarding agency. 

(e) Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4728–
4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one 
of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM’s Standards for a Merit 
System of Personnel Administration (5 CFR 900, Subpart F). 

Page 40



(f) Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are 
not limited to: 
(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin, as effectuated by U.S. 
DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 21; 

(2) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681–
1683, and 1685–1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex, as 
effectuated by U.S. DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 25; 

(3) Section 5332 of the Federal Transit Law (49 U.S.C. § 5332), which prohibits any 
person being excluded from participating in, denied a benefit of, or discriminated 
against under, a project, program, or activity receiving financial assistance from 
FTA because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age. 

(4) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, as effectuated by U.S. 
DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 27; 

(5) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101–6107), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; 

(6) The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; 

(7) The comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91–616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; 

(8) Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§ 290 
dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug 
abuse patient records; 

(9) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; 

(10) Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which 
application for Federal assistance is being made; and, 

(11) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

(g) Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
(“Uniform Act”) (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons 
displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or federally-assisted 
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases. The requirements of the 
Uniform Act are effectuated by U.S. DOT regulation 49 CFR Part 24. 

Page 41



(h) Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501–1508 
and 7324–7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal 
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

(i) Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis–Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 
§§ 276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. § 276c and 18 U.S.C. § 874), and the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 327–333), regarding labor 
standards for federally assisted construction subagreements. 

(j) Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) 
of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a 
special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if 
the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

(k) Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the 
following: 
(1) Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 
11514; 

(2) Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
(3) Protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; 
(4) Evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; 
(5) Assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program 

developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1451 
et seq.); 

(6) Conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under 
Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et 
seq.); 

(7) Protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking 
Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and 

(8) Protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as 
amended (P.L. 93–205). 

(l) Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1271 et seq.) 
related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic 
rivers system. 

(m) Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§ 469a-1 et seq.). 

(n) Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in 
research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance. 

(o) Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 
7 U.S.C. §§ 2131 et seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded 

Page 42



animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of 
assistance. 

(p) Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4801 et 
seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of 
residence structures. 

(q) Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance 
with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, “Audit 
Requirements”, as adopted and implemented by U.S. DOT at 2 CFR Part 1201. 

(r) Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, 
regulations, and policies governing the program under which it is applying for assistance. 

(s) Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims 
Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104) which prohibits grant 
award recipients or a sub-recipient from: 
(1) Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that 

the award is in effect; 
(2) Procuring a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in 

effect; or 
(3) Using forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the 

award. 

1.2. Standard Assurances: Additional Assurances for Construction Projects. 

This certification appears on the Office of Management and Budget’s standard form 424D 
“Assurances—Construction Programs” and applies specifically to federally assisted projects for 
construction. This certification has been modified in places to include analogous certifications 
required by U.S. DOT statutes or regulations. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, you certify that the applicant: 

(a) Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title or 
other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the 
awarding agency; will record the Federal awarding agency directives; and will include a 
covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of the project. 

(b) Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency with regard to the 
drafting, review, and approval of construction plans and specifications. 

(c) Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the 
construction site to ensure that the complete work confirms with the approved plans and 
specifications, and will furnish progressive reports and such other information as may be 
required by the assistance awarding agency or State. 

Page 43



1.3. Procurement. 

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, 2 CFR § 200.324, allow a recipient to self-certify 
that its procurement system complies with Federal requirements, in lieu of submitting to certain 
pre-procurement reviews. 

The applicant certifies that its procurement system complies with: 

(a) U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by 
reference U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, particularly 2 
CFR §§ 200.317–200.326 “Procurement Standards; 

(b) Federal laws, regulations, and requirements applicable to FTA procurements; and 
(c) The latest edition of FTA Circular 4220.1 and other applicable Federal guidance. 

1.4. Suspension and Debarment. 

Pursuant to Executive Order 12549, as implemented at 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200, prior to 
entering into a covered transaction with an applicant, FTA must determine whether the applicant 
is excluded from participating in covered non-procurement transactions. For this purpose, FTA 
is authorized to collect a certification from each applicant regarding the applicant’s exclusion 
status. 2 CFR § 180.300. Additionally, each applicant must disclose any information required by 
2 CFR § 180.335 about the applicant and the applicant’s principals prior to entering into an 
award agreement with FTA. This certification serves both purposes. 

The applicant certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that the applicant and each of its 
principals: 

(a) Is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily or involuntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

(b) Has not, within the preceding three years, been convicted of or had a civil judgment 
rendered against him or her for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or 
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes, including those proscribing 
price fixing between competitors, allocation of customers between competitors, and bid 
rigging; commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction 
of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving stolen property, making false 
claims, or obstruction of justice; or commission of any other offense indicating a lack of 
business integrity or business honesty; 

Page 44



(c) Is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any offense described in paragraph 
(b) of this certification; 

(d) Has not, within the preceding three years, had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

1.5. Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021, and 
CARES Act Funding. 

The applicant certifies that, to the maximum extent possible, and consistent with the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 116–260): 

(a) Funds made available under title IV of division M of the Consolidated Appropriations 
Act, 2021 (Public Law 116–260), and in title XII of division B of the CARES Act (Public 
Law 116–136; 134 Stat. 599) shall be directed to payroll and operations of public transit 
(including payroll and expenses of private providers of public transportation); or  

(b) The applicant certifies that the applicant has not furloughed any employees.  

CATEGORY 2. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLANS 

This certification is required of each applicant under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants 
Program (49 U.S.C. § 5307), each rail operator that is subject to FTA’s state safety oversight 
programs, and each State that is required to draft and certify a public transportation agency 
safety plan on behalf of a small public transportation provider pursuant to 49 CFR § 673.11(d). 
This certification is required by 49 CFR § 673.13. 

This certification does not apply to any applicant that receives financial assistance from FTA 
exclusively under the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program (49 U.S.C. 
§ 5310), the Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), or combination of 
these two programs. 

If the applicant is an operator, the applicant certifies that it has established a public transportation 
agency safety plan meeting the requirements of 49 CFR Part 673.  

If the applicant is a State, the applicant certifies that: 

(a) It has drafted a public transportation agency safety plan for each small public 
transportation provider within the State, unless the small public transportation 
provider provided notification to the State that it was opting-out of the State-drafted 
plan and drafting its own public transportation agency safety plan; and  

(b) Each small public transportation provider within the state has a public transportation 
agency safety plan that has been approved by the provider’s Accountable Executive 

Page 45



(as that term is defined at 49 CFR § 673.5) and Board of Directors or Equivalent 
Authority (as that term is defined at 49 CFR § 673.5).  

CATEGORY 3. TAX LIABILITY AND FELONY CONVICTIONS. 

If the applicant is a business association (regardless of for-profit, not for-profit, or tax exempt 
status), it must make this certification. Federal appropriations acts since at least 2014 have 
prohibited FTA from using funds to enter into an agreement with any corporation that has 
unpaid Federal tax liabilities or recent felony convictions without first considering the 
corporation for debarment. E.g., Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, Pub. L. 116-260, div. 
E, title VII, §§ 744–745. U.S. DOT Order 4200.6 defines a “corporation” as “any private 
corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole proprietorship, or other business 
association”, and applies the restriction to all tiers of subawards. As prescribed by U.S. DOT 
Order 4200.6, FTA requires each business association applicant to certify as to its tax and 
felony status. 

If the applicant is a private corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole 
proprietorship, or other business association, the applicant certifies that: 

(a) It has no unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and 
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in 
a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting 
the tax liability; and 

(b) It has not been convicted of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the 
preceding 24 months. 

CATEGORY 4. LOBBYING. 

If the applicant will apply for a grant or cooperative agreement exceeding $100,000, or a loan, 
line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance exceeding $150,000, it must make the following 
certification and, if applicable, make a disclosure regarding the applicant’s lobbying activities. 
This certification is required by 49 CFR § 20.110 and app. A to that part. 

This certification does not apply to an applicant that is an Indian Tribe, Indian organization, or 
an Indian tribal organization exempt from the requirements of 49 CFR Part 20. 

4.1. Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements. 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 

Page 46



an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 
of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who 
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

4.2. Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance. 

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee 
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment 
providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 

Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required statement 
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each 
such failure. 

CATEGORY 5. PRIVATE SECTOR PROTECTIONS. 

If the applicant will apply for funds that it will use to acquire or operate public transportation 
facilities or equipment, the applicant must make the following certification regarding protections 
for the private sector. 

Page 47



5.1. Charter Service Agreement. 

To enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d), FTA’s charter service regulation requires each 
applicant seeking assistance from FTA for the purpose of acquiring or operating any public 
transportation equipment or facilities to make the following Charter Service Agreement. 49 CFR 
§ 604.4. 

The applicant agrees that it, and each of its subrecipients, and third party contractors at any level 
who use FTA-funded vehicles, may provide charter service using equipment or facilities 
acquired with Federal assistance authorized under the Federal Transit Laws only in compliance 
with the regulations set out in 49 CFR Part 604, the terms and conditions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

5.2. School Bus Agreement. 

To enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(f), FTA’s school bus regulation requires each 
applicant seeking assistance from FTA for the purpose of acquiring or operating any public 
transportation equipment or facilities to make the following agreement regarding the provision 
of school bus services. 49 CFR § 605.15. 

(a) If the applicant is not authorized by the FTA Administrator under 49 CFR § 605.11 to 
engage in school bus operations, the applicant agrees and certifies as follows: 
(1) The applicant and any operator of project equipment agrees that it will not engage 

in school bus operations in competition with private school bus operators. 
(2) The applicant agrees that it will not engage in any practice which constitutes a 

means of avoiding the requirements of this agreement, part 605 of the Federal 
Mass Transit Regulations, or section 164(b) of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 
1973 (49 U.S.C. 1602a(b)). 

(b) If the applicant is authorized or obtains authorization from the FTA Administrator to 
engage in school bus operations under 49 CFR § 605.11, the applicant agrees as follows: 
(1) The applicant agrees that neither it nor any operator of project equipment will 

engage in school bus operations in competition with private school bus operators 
except as provided herein. 

(2) The applicant, or any operator of project equipment, agrees to promptly notify the 
FTA Administrator of any changes in its operations which might jeopardize the 
continuation of an exemption under § 605.11. 

(3) The applicant agrees that it will not engage in any practice which constitutes a 
means of avoiding the requirements of this agreement, part 605 of the Federal 
Transit Administration regulations or section 164(b) of the Federal-Aid Highway 
Act of 1973 (49 U.S.C. 1602a(b)). 

(4) The applicant agrees that the project facilities and equipment shall be used for the 
provision of mass transportation services within its urban area and that any other 

Page 48



use of project facilities and equipment will be incidental to and shall not interfere 
with the use of such facilities and equipment in mass transportation service to the 
public. 

CATEGORY 6. TRANSIT ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

If the applicant owns, operates, or manages capital assets used to provide public transportation, 
the following certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5326(a). 

The applicant certifies that it is in compliance with 49 CFR Part 625. 

CATEGORY 7. ROLLING STOCK BUY AMERICA REVIEWS AND BUS TESTING. 

7.1. Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews. 

If the applicant will apply for an award to acquire rolling stock for use in revenue service, it 
must make this certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 663.7. 

The applicant certifies that it will conduct or cause to be conducted the pre-award and post-
delivery audits prescribed by 49 CFR Part 663 and will maintain on file the certifications 
required by Subparts B, C, and D of 49 CFR Part 663. 

7.2. Bus Testing. 

If the applicant will apply for funds for the purchase or lease of any new bus model, or any bus 
model with a major change in configuration or components, the applicant must make this 
certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 665.7. 

The applicant certifies that the bus was tested at the Bus Testing Facility and that the bus 
received a passing test score as required by 49 CFR Part 665. The applicant has received or will 
receive the appropriate full Bus Testing Report and any applicable partial testing reports before 
final acceptance of the first vehicle. 

CATEGORY 8. URBANIZED AREA FORMULA GRANTS PROGRAM. 

If the applicant will apply for an award under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program 
(49 U.S.C. § 5307), or any other program or award that is subject to the requirements of 
49 U.S.C. § 5307, including the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program 
(49 U.S.C. § 5310); “flex funds” from infrastructure programs administered by the Federal 
Highways Administration (see 49 U.S.C. § 5334(i)); projects that will receive an award 
authorized by the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“TIFIA”) 
(23 U.S.C. §§ 601–609) or State Infrastructure Bank Program (23 U.S.C. § 610) (see 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5323(o)); formula awards or competitive awards to urbanized areas under the Grants for 

Page 49



Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339(a) and (b)); or low or no emission awards 
to any area under the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339(c)), the 
applicant must make the following certification. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5307(c)(1). 

The applicant certifies that it: 

(a) Has or will have the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry out the program of 
projects (developed pursuant 49 U.S.C. § 5307(b)), including safety and security aspects 
of the program; 

(b) Has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of equipment and facilities; 
(c) Will maintain equipment and facilities in accordance with the applicant’s transit asset 

management plan; 
(d) Will ensure that, during non-peak hours for transportation using or involving a facility or 

equipment of a project financed under this section, a fare that is not more than 50 percent 
of the peak hour fare will be charged for any— 
(1) Senior; 
(2) Individual who, because of illness, injury, age, congenital malfunction, or any 

other incapacity or temporary or permanent disability (including an individual 
who is a wheelchair user or has semi-ambulatory capability), cannot use a public 
transportation service or a public transportation facility effectively without special 
facilities, planning, or design; and 

(3) Individual presenting a Medicare card issued to that individual under title II or 
XVIII of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 401 et seq., and 1395 et seq.); 

(e) In carrying out a procurement under 49 U.S.C. § 5307, will comply with 49 U.S.C. 
§§ 5323 (general provisions) and 5325 (contract requirements); 

(f) Has complied with 49 U.S.C. § 5307(b) (program of projects requirements); 
(g) Has available and will provide the required amounts as provided by 49 U.S.C. § 5307(d) 

(cost sharing); 
(h) Will comply with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5303 (metropolitan transportation planning) and 5304 

(statewide and nonmetropolitan transportation planning); 
(i) Has a locally developed process to solicit and consider public comment before raising a 

fare or carrying out a major reduction of transportation; 
(j) Either— 

(1) Will expend for each fiscal year for public transportation security projects, 
including increased lighting in or adjacent to a public transportation system 
(including bus stops, subway stations, parking lots, and garages), increased 
camera surveillance of an area in or adjacent to that system, providing an 
emergency telephone line to contact law enforcement or security personnel in an 
area in or adjacent to that system, and any other project intended to increase the 
security and safety of an existing or planned public transportation system, at least 

Page 50



1 percent of the amount the recipient receives for each fiscal year under 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5336; or 

(2) Has decided that the expenditure for security projects is not necessary; 
(k) In the case of an applicant for an urbanized area with a population of not fewer than 

200,000 individuals, as determined by the Bureau of the Census, will submit an annual 
report listing projects carried out in the preceding fiscal year under 49 U.S.C. § 5307 for 
associated transit improvements as defined in 49 U.S.C. § 5302; and 

(l) Will comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d) (public transportation agency safety plan). 

CATEGORY 9. FORMULA GRANTS FOR RURAL AREAS. 

If the applicant will apply for funds made available to it under the Formula Grants for Rural 
Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), it must make this certification. Paragraph (a) of this 
certification helps FTA make the determinations required by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(b)(2)(C). 
Paragraph (b) of this certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5311(f)(2). Paragraph (c) of this 
certification, which applies to funds apportioned for the Appalachian Development Public 
Transportation Assistance Program, is necessary to enforce the conditions of 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5311(c)(2)(D). 

(a) The applicant certifies that its State program for public transportation service projects, 
including agreements with private providers for public transportation service— 
(1) Provides a fair distribution of amounts in the State, including Indian reservations; 

and 
(2) Provides the maximum feasible coordination of public transportation service 

assisted under 49 U.S.C. § 5311 with transportation service assisted by other 
Federal sources; and 

(b) If the applicant will in any fiscal year expend less than 15% of the total amount made 
available to it under 49 U.S.C. § 5311 to carry out a program to develop and support 
intercity bus transportation, the applicant certifies that it has consulted with affected 
intercity bus service providers, and the intercity bus service needs of the State are being 
met adequately. 

(c) If the applicant will use for a highway project amounts that cannot be used for operating 
expenses authorized under 49 U.S.C. § 5311(c)(2) (Appalachian Development Public 
Transportation Assistance Program), the applicant certifies that— 
(1) It has approved the use in writing only after providing appropriate notice and an 

opportunity for comment and appeal to affected public transportation providers; 
and 

(2) It has determined that otherwise eligible local transit needs are being addressed. 

Page 51



CATEGORY 10. FIXED GUIDEWAY CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS AND THE 
EXPEDITED PROJECT DELIVERY FOR CAPITAL INVESTMENT GRANTS 

PILOT PROGRAM. 

If the applicant will apply for an award under any subsection of the Fixed Guideway Capital 
Investment Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), including an award made pursuant to the FAST Act’s 
Expedited Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program (Pub. L. 114-94, div. A, 
title III, § 3005(b)), the applicant must make the following certification. This certification is 
required by 49 U.S.C. § 5309(c)(2) and Pub. L. 114-94, div. A, title III, § 3005(b)(3)(B). 

The applicant certifies that it: 

(a) Has or will have the legal, financial, and technical capacity to carry out its Award, 
including the safety and security aspects of that Award, 

(b) Has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of equipment and facilities 
acquired or improved under its Award. 

(c) Will maintain equipment and facilities acquired or improved under its Award in 
accordance with its transit asset management plan; and 

(d) Will comply with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5303 (metropolitan transportation planning) and 5304 
(statewide and nonmetropolitan transportation planning). 

CATEGORY 11. GRANTS FOR BUSES AND BUS FACILITIES AND LOW OR NO 
EMISSION VEHICLE DEPLOYMENT GRANT PROGRAMS. 

If the applicant is in an urbanized area and will apply for an award under subsection (a) 
(formula grants) or subsection (b) (competitive grants) of the Grants for Buses and Bus 
Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339), the applicant must make the certification in Category 8 
for Urbanized Area Formula Grants (49 U.S.C. § 5307). This certification is required by 
49 U.S.C. § 5339(a)(3) and (b)(6), respectively. 

If the applicant is in a rural area and will apply for an award under subsection (a) (formula 
grants) or subsection (b) (competitive grants) of the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities 
Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339), the applicant must make the certification in Category 9 for 
Formula Grants for Rural Areas (49 U.S.C. § 5311). This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5339(a)(3) and (b)(6), respectively. 

If the applicant, regardless of whether it is in an urbanized or rural area, will apply for an 
award under subsection (c) (low or no emission vehicle grants) of the Grants for Buses and Bus 
Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339), the applicant must make the certification in Category 8 
for Urbanized Area Formula Grants (49 U.S.C. § 5307). This certification is required by 
49 U.S.C. § 5339(c)(3). 

Page 52



Making this certification will incorporate by reference the applicable certifications in 
Category 8 or Category 9. 

CATEGORY 12. ENHANCED MOBILITY OF SENIORS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 
DISABILITIES PROGRAMS. 

If the applicant will apply for an award under the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of 
Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program (49 U.S.C. § 5310), it must make the 
certification in Category 8 for Urbanized Area Formula Grants (49 U.S.C. § 5307). This 
certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(e)(1). Making this certification will incorporate by 
reference the certification in Category 8, except that FTA has determined that (d), (f), (i), (j), and 
(k) of Category 8 do not apply to awards made under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 and will not be enforced.  

In addition to the certification in Category 8, the applicant must make the following certification 
that is specific to the Formula Grants for the Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities Program. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(e)(2). 

The applicant certifies that: 

(a) The projects selected by the applicant are included in a locally developed, coordinated 
public transit-human services transportation plan; 

(b) The plan described in clause (a) was developed and approved through a process that 
included participation by seniors, individuals with disabilities, representatives of public, 
private, and nonprofit transportation and human services providers, and other members of 
the public; 

(c) To the maximum extent feasible, the services funded under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 will be 
coordinated with transportation services assisted by other Federal departments and 
agencies, including any transportation activities carried out by a recipient of a grant from 
the Department of Health and Human Services; and 

(d) If the applicant will allocate funds received under 49 U.S.C. § 5310 to subrecipients, it 
will do so on a fair and equitable basis. 

CATEGORY 13. STATE OF GOOD REPAIR GRANTS. 

If the applicant will apply for an award under FTA’s State of Good Repair Grants Program 
(49 U.S.C. § 5337), it must make the following certification. Because FTA generally does not 
review the transit asset management plans of public transportation providers, this certification is 
necessary to enforce the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5337(a)(4). 

The applicant certifies that the projects it will carry out using assistance authorized by the State 
of Good Repair Grants Program, 49 U.S.C. § 5337, are aligned with the applicant’s most recent 

Page 53



transit asset management plan and are identified in the investment and prioritization section of 
such plan, consistent with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 625. 

CATEGORY 14. INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE PROGRAMS. 

If the applicant will apply for an award for a project that will include assistance under the 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (“TIFIA”) Program (23 U.S.C. 
§§ 601–609) or the State Infrastructure Banks (“SIB”) Program (23 U.S.C. § 610), it must make 
the certifications in Category 8 for the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program, Category 10 
for the Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants program, and Category 13 for the State of 
Good Repair Grants program. These certifications are required by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(o). 

Making this certification will incorporate the certifications in Categories 8, 10, and 13 by 
reference. 

CATEGORY 15. ALCOHOL AND CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES TESTING. 

If the applicant will apply for an award under FTA’s Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program 
(49 U.S.C. § 5307), Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), Formula 
Grants for Rural Areas Program (49 U.S.C. § 5311), or Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities 
Program (49 U.S.C. § 5339) programs, the applicant must make the following certification. The 
applicant must make this certification on its own behalf and on behalf of its subrecipients and 
contractors. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 655.83. 

The applicant certifies that it, its subrecipients, and its contractors are compliant with FTA’s 
regulation for the Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations, 
49 CFR Part 655. 

CATEGORY 16. RAIL SAFETY TRAINING AND OVERSIGHT. 

If the applicant is a State with at least one rail fixed guideway system, or is a State Safety 
Oversight Agency, or operates a rail fixed guideway system, it must make the following 
certification. The elements of this certification are required by 49 CFR §§ 659.43, 672.31, and 
674.39. 

The applicant certifies that the rail fixed guideway public transportation system and the State 
Safety Oversight Agency for the State are: 

(a) Compliant with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 659, “Rail Fixed Guideway Systems; 
State Safety Oversight”; 

(b) Compliant with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 672, “Public Transportation Safety 
Certification Training Program”; and 

(c) Compliant with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 674, “Sate Safety Oversight”. 

Page 54



CATEGORY 17. DEMAND RESPONSIVE SERVICE. 

If the applicant operates demand responsive service and will apply for an award to purchase a 
non-rail vehicle that is not accessible within the meaning of 49 CFR Part 37, it must make the 
following certification. This certification is required by 49 CFR § 37.77. 

The applicant certifies that the service it provides to individuals with disabilities is equivalent to 
that provided to other persons. A demand responsive system, when viewed in its entirety, is 
deemed to provide equivalent service if the service available to individuals with disabilities, 
including individuals who use wheelchairs, is provided in the most integrated setting appropriate 
to the needs of the individual and is equivalent to the service provided other individuals with 
respect to the following service characteristics: 

(a) Response time; 
(b) Fares; 
(c) Geographic area of service; 
(d) Hours and days of service; 
(e) Restrictions or priorities based on trip purpose; 
(f) Availability of information and reservation capability; and 
(g) Any constraints on capacity or service availability. 

CATEGORY 18. INTEREST AND FINANCING COSTS. 

If the applicant will pay for interest or other financing costs of a project using assistance 
awarded under the Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program (49 U.S.C. § 5307), the Fixed 
Guideway Capital Investment Grants Program (49 U.S.C. § 5309), or any program that must 
comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, including the Formula Grants for the 
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors Program (49 U.S.C. § 5310), “flex funds” from infrastructure 
programs administered by the Federal Highways Administration (see 49 U.S.C. § 5334(i)), or 
awards to urbanized areas under the Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program (49 U.S.C. 
§ 5339), the applicant must make the following certification. This certification is required by 
49 U.S.C. §§ 5307(e)(3) and 5309(k)(2)(D). 

The applicant certifies that: 

(a) Its application includes the cost of interest earned and payable on bonds issued by the 
applicant only to the extent proceeds of the bonds were or will be expended in carrying 
out the project identified in its application; and 

(b) The applicant has shown or will show reasonable diligence in seeking the most favorable 
financing terms available to the project at the time of borrowing. 

Page 55



CATEGORY 19. CONSTRUCTION HIRING PREFERENCES. 

If the applicant will ask FTA to approve the use of geographic, economic, or any other hiring 
preference not otherwise authorized by law on any contract or construction project to be assisted 
with an award from FTA, it must make the following certification. This certification is required 
by the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, Pub. L. 116-260, div. L, title I, § 199(b). 

The applicant certifies the following: 

(a) That except with respect to apprentices or trainees, a pool of readily available but 
unemployed individuals possessing the knowledge, skill, and ability to perform the work 
that the contract requires resides in the jurisdiction; 

(b) That the grant recipient will include appropriate provisions in its bid document ensuring 
that the contractor does not displace any of its existing employees in order to satisfy such 
hiring preference; and 

(c) That any increase in the cost of labor, training, or delays resulting from the use of such 
hiring preference does not delay or displace any transportation project in the applicable 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program or Transportation Improvement 
Program. 

CATEGORY 20. CYBERSECURITY CERTIFICATION FOR RAIL ROLLING STOCK 
AND OPERATIONS. 

If the applicant operates a rail fixed guideway public transportation system, it must make this 
certification. This certification is required by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(v), a new subsection added by the 
National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2020, Pub. L. 116-92, § 7613 (Dec. 20, 
2019). For information about standards or practices that may apply to a rail fixed guideway 
public transportation system, visit https://www.nist.gov/cyberframework and 
https://www.cisa.gov/. 

The applicant certifies that it has established a process to develop, maintain, and execute a 
written plan for identifying and reducing cybersecurity risks that complies with the requirements 
of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(v)(2). 

CATEGORY 21. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ON INDIAN RESERVATIONS 
FORMULA AND DISCRETIONARY PROGRAM (TRIBAL TRANSIT 

PROGRAMS). 

Before FTA may provide Federal assistance for an Award financed under either the Public 
Transportation on Indian Reservations Formula or Discretionary Program authorized under 
49 U.S.C. § 5311(c)(1), as amended by the FAST Act, (Tribal Transit Programs), the applicant 
must select the Certifications in Category 21, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing. 

Page 56



Page 57



 

Page 58


	1 - Agenda - June  16, 2022 - MTPO Executive Board Meeting.pdf
	3 - MINUTES of May 12, 2022.pdf
	4 - TIP Amendment #9 - Full Packet.pdf
	Resolution.pdf
	Self Certification - VA.pdf
	TIP Amendment #9 - Maintenance for Bridges grouping - Project Page - OLD.pdf
	TIP Amendment #9 - Maintenance for Bridges grouping - Project Page - NEW.pdf
	TIP Amendment #9 - Maintenance Traffic & Safety grouping - Project Page - OLD.pdf
	TIP Amendment #9 - Maintenance Traffic & Safety grouping - Project Page - NEW.pdf

	5 - TIP Amendment #10 (KPT-2015-002).pdf
	Resolution.pdf
	Self Certification - TN.pdf
	TIP Amendment #10 - For Local Programs Concurrence.pdf
	TIP Amendment #10 - Main St Project Page - OLD.pdf
	TIP Amendment #10 - Main St Project Page - NEW - version 2 with FY23 & FY24 funds.pdf
	TIP Amendment #10 - Financial Tables - OLD.pdf
	TIP Amendment #10 - Financial Tables - NEW - version 2 with FY23 & FY24 funds.pdf


	6 - Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - FINAL 05.11.22.pdf
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22.pdf
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22.pdf
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22.pdf
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Draft4 03.28.22.pdf
	Self-Certification
	Abbreviations
	Title VI Plan
	1. Metropolitan Planning
	2. Title VI Abstract
	3. Title VI Program
	3.1 Communications and Public Participation
	3.2 Planning and Programming
	3.3 Advertisements and Consultant Contracts
	3.4 Education and Training
	3.5 Other Requirements
	a) Annual Certification and Assurance
	b) Complaint Process
	c) Record Title VI Activities
	d) Access for LEP Persons
	e) Timely Submission
	f) Reporting and Subrecipients
	g) Compliance and Enforcement
	h) Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits
	i) Title VI Coordinator


	4. Environmental Justice
	Appendix A – Title VI Policy Statement
	Appendix B – Title VI Complaint Investigation Procedure and Form




	Kingsport MTPO Title VI Complaint Form 03.28.22.pdf
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Draft4 03.28.22.pdf
	Appendix C – List of Active Lawsuits
	Appendix D – Limited English Proficiency Plan

	Interpreters - World Wide.pdf
	Interpreters - World Wide.pdf
	ISpeakCards2004.pdf

	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Draft4 03.28.22
	Appendix E – Title VI Nondiscrimination Assurances for FHWA

	Title VI Assurance VDOT - Entire Document with KPT MPO added.pdf

	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22

	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Full Document Draft 03.28.22
	Kingsport MTPO TITLE VI PLAN - Draft4 03.28.22
	Appendix F – Title VI Certifications and Assurances for FTA

	Certifications and Assurances FY21.pdf
	FY2021 FTA Certifications and Assurances (olga).pdf
	Certifications and Assurances Online Signature (Pinning) - 3-15-21.pdf








